
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

Watermaster’s function is to administer and enforce provisions of the Judgment and subsequent orders of the Court, 
and to develop and implement an Optimum Basin Management Program 

NOTICE OF MEETINGS 

Thursday, March 14, 2024 
9:00 a.m. – Appropriative Pool Committee Meeting 

11:00 a.m. – Non-Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting 
1:30 p.m. – Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting 



 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
 APPROPRIATIVE POOL COMMITTEE MEETING  

9:00 a.m. March 14, 2024 
Mr. Chris Diggs, Chair 

Mr. Chris Berch, Vice-Chair 
At The Offices Of 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
 

(Call can be taken remotely via Zoom at this link) 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER 
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-controversial 
and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.   There will be no separate discussion 
on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public requests specific items be 
discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate action. 
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
Minutes of the Appropriative Pool Committee Meeting held on February 8, 2024 (Page 1)  
 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS  
Receive and file as presented: 
Monthly Financial Report for the Period Ended January 31, 2024 (Page 22) 

 
C. OBMP SEMI-ANNUAL STATUS REPORT 2023-2 

Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Watermaster Board to adopt the Semi-
Annual OBMP Status Report 2023-2, and direct staff to file a copy with the Court, subject to any 
necessary non-substantive changes. (Page 40)  

 
D. SGMA REPORTING FOR WATER YEAR 2023 

Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Watermaster Board to approve and direct 
staff to file the information/reports with the DWR. (Page 61) 
 

II. BUSINESS ITEMS  
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

https://us06web.zoom.us/j/2853864013?pwd=SnZhVkVxK0tXZENOOXVpV0JzeVo3UT09


Agenda Appropriative Pool Committee Meeting                                                                             March 14, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER LEGAL COUNSEL 

1. Watermaster Court Department Change 
2. May 31, 2024 Court Hearing (Watermaster 46th Annual Report)  
3. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 (City of Chino, MVIC, MVWD, City of Ontario appeal re OAP 

Expenses and Attorney Fees)  
4. Court of Appeal Consolidated Cases No. E080457 and E082127 (City of Ontario appeal re 2021- 

22 and 2022-23 Assessment Packages)  
5. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533 (Cities of Chino, Ontario appeal re 2022-23 Watermaster 

budget expenses to support CEQA analysis)  
6. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit   

 
B. ENGINEER  

1. SGMA Reporting for Water Year 2023 
2. Ground-Level Monitoring Program 
3. Data Collection and Evaluation 
4. 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation 
5. Emerging Contaminants Monitoring Plan 

 
C. GENERAL MANAGER 

1. Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget Release  
2. Status Report: Exhibit G Physical Solution Transfers 
3. Other  

 
IV. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION – POSSIBLE ACTION 
A Confidential Session may be held during the Pool Committee meeting for the purpose of discussion and  
possible action. 
 
1. Approve Egoscue Law Group, Inc. Invoice #14282 dated February 01, 2024, in the amount of 

$18,310.50 for services performed during January 2024. 
2. Approve Egoscue Law Group, Inc. Invoice # 14295 dated March 01, 2024, in the amount of $ 14,350.00 

for services performed during February 2024. 
 

VII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER 
 03/14/24    Thu      9:00 a.m. Appropriative Pool Committee 
 03/14/24    Thu  11:00 a.m. Non-Agricultural Pool Committee 
 03/14/24    Thu    1:30 p.m. Agricultural Pool Committee 
   03/21/24    Thu       9:00 a.m.   Advisory Committee 
 03/21/24    Thu  10:00 a.m. Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
 03/26/24    Tue  10:00 a.m. Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget Release  
 03/28/24    Thu       9:30 a.m.   Watermaster Orientation*  
 03/28/24    Thu     11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board 
 
* The Watermaster Orientation series are held in person only with no remote access. 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
 
 



 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEETING  
11:00 a.m. March 14, 2024 

Mr. Brian Geye, Chair 
Mr. Bob Bowcock, Vice-Chair 

At The Offices Of 
Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER  
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AGENDA – ADDITIONS/REORDER 
 
I. BUSINESS ITEMS – ROUTINE 

A. MINUTES 
Receive and File: 
Minutes of the Non-Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting held on February 8, 2024 (Page 6) 

 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS  

Receive and file as presented: 
Monthly Financial Report for the Period Ended January 31, 2024 (Page 22) 

 
C. OBMP SEMI-ANNUAL STATUS REPORT 2023-2 

Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Watermaster Board to adopt the Semi-
Annual OBMP Status Report 2023-2, and direct staff to file a copy with the Court, subject to any 
necessary non-substantive changes. (Page 40) 
 

D. SGMA REPORTING FOR WATER YEAR 2023 
Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Watermaster Board to approve and direct 
staff to file the information/reports with the DWR. (Page 61)  

 
II. BUSINESS ITEMS  

A.  MEMBER STATUS CHANGES 
1. Any proposed transfer of Safe Yield by a Member. 
2. Any transfer of Safe Yield that has actually closed or been completed. 
3. Any change in name or corporate identity of a Member (such as results from a merger or filing of a 

change of name certificate). 
4. Any change in the name of a representative or alternate representative of a Member, or a change in 

e-mail address for either such person. 
 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER LEGAL COUNSEL 

1. Watermaster Court Department Change 
2. May 31, 2024 Court Hearing (Watermaster 46th Annual Report)  
3. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 (City of Chino, MVIC, MVWD, City of Ontario appeal re OAP 

Expenses and Attorney Fees)  
 
 
 
 



Agenda Non-Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting                                                                       March 14, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 

4. Court of Appeal Consolidated Cases No. E080457 and E082127 (City of Ontario appeal re 2021- 
22 and 2022-23 Assessment Packages)  

5. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533 (Cities of Chino, Ontario appeal re 2022-23 Watermaster 
budget expenses to support CEQA analysis)  

6. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit  
 

B. ENGINEER  
1. SGMA Reporting for Water Year 2023 
2. Ground-Level Monitoring Program 
3. Data Collection and Evaluation 
4. 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation 
5. Emerging Contaminants Monitoring Plan 

 
C. GENERAL MANAGER 

1. Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget Release  
2. Status Report: Exhibit G Physical Solution Transfers 
3. Other 

 
IV. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION 
A Confidential Session may be held during the Pool Committee meeting for the purpose of discussion and 
possible action. 

 
VII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER 

03/14/24    Thu      9:00 a.m. Appropriative Pool Committee 
 03/14/24    Thu  11:00 a.m. Non-Agricultural Pool Committee 
 03/14/24    Thu    1:30 p.m. Agricultural Pool Committee 
   03/21/24    Thu       9:00 a.m.   Advisory Committee 
 03/21/24    Thu  10:00 a.m. Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
 03/26/24    Tue  10:00 a.m. Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget Release  
 03/28/24    Thu       9:30 a.m.   Watermaster Orientation*  
 03/28/24    Thu     11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board  
 
* The Watermaster Orientation series are held in person only with no remote access. 

 
ADJOURNMENT 



  CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
 AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEETING  

1:30 p.m. March 14, 2024 
Mr. Bob Feenstra, Chair 

Mr. Jeff Pierson, Vice-Chair 
At The Offices Of 

Chino Basin Watermaster 
9641 San Bernardino Road 

Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
ROLL CALL 
 
AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER 
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-controversial 
and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.   There will be no separate discussion 
on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public requests specific items be 
discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate action. 
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
Minutes of the Annual Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting held on February 8, 2024. (Page 9) 

 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS  

Receive and file as presented: 
Monthly Financial Report for the Period Ended January 31, 2024 (Page 22)  

 
C. OBMP SEMI-ANNUAL STATUS REPORT 2023-2 

Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Watermaster Board to adopt the Semi-
Annual OBMP Status Report 2023-2, and direct staff to file a copy with the Court, subject to any 
necessary non-substantive changes. (Page 40)  
 

D. SGMA REPORTING FOR WATER YEAR 2023 
Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Watermaster Board to approve and direct 
staff to file the information/reports with the DWR. (Page 61)  

 
II. BUSINESS ITEMS 

A. OLD BUSINESS  
 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER LEGAL COUNSEL 

1. Watermaster Court Department Change 
2. May 31, 2024 Court Hearing (Watermaster 46th Annual Report)  
3. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 (City of Chino, MVIC, MVWD, City of Ontario appeal re OAP 

Expenses and Attorney Fees)  
4. Court of Appeal Consolidated Cases No. E080457 and E082127 (City of Ontario appeal re 2021- 

22 and 2022-23 Assessment Packages)  
5. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533 (Cities of Chino, Ontario appeal re 2022-23 Watermaster 

budget expenses to support CEQA analysis)  
6. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit   

 



Agenda Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting                                                                     March 14, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 

B. ENGINEER  
1. SGMA Reporting for Water Year 2023 
2. Ground-Level Monitoring Program 
3. Data Collection and Evaluation 
4. 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation 
5. Emerging Contaminants Monitoring Plan 

 
C. GENERAL MANAGER 

1. Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget Release  
2. Status Report: Exhibit G Physical Solution Transfers 
3. Other 

 
IV. POOL DISCUSSION 
 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 

 
VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION 

A Confidential Session may be held during the Pool Committee meeting for the purpose of discussion and 
possible action. 
 
1. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 
2. Future of the Agricultural Pool 

 
VII. FUTURE MEETINGS AT WATERMASTER 

03/14/24    Thu      9:00 a.m. Appropriative Pool Committee 
 03/14/24    Thu  11:00 a.m. Non-Agricultural Pool Committee 
 03/14/24    Thu    1:30 p.m. Agricultural Pool Committee 
   03/21/24    Thu       9:00 a.m.   Advisory Committee 
 03/21/24    Thu  10:00 a.m. Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee 
 03/26/24    Tue  10:00 a.m. Fiscal Year 2024/25 Budget Release  
 03/28/24    Thu       9:30 a.m.   Watermaster Orientation*  
 03/28/24    Thu     11:00 a.m. Watermaster Board  
 
* The Watermaster Orientation series are held in person only with no remote access. 
 

ADJOURNMENT  



DRAFT MINUTES 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

APPROPRIATIVE POOL COMMITTEE MEETING 
February 8, 2024 

The Appropriative Pool committee meeting was held at the Watermaster offices located at 9641 San 
Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA, and via Zoom (conference call and web meeting) on 
February 8, 2024. 

APPROPRIATIVE POOL COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Chris Diggs, Chair  City of Pomona 
Chris Berch, Vice Chair  Jurupa Community Services District 
Amanda Coker Cucamonga Valley Water District 
Dave Crosley  City of Chino 
Ron Craig City of Chino Hills 
Courtney Jones City of Ontario 
Oscar Ramos for Marty Zvirbulis Fontana Union Water Company 
Cris Fealy Fontana Water Company 
Oscar Ramos for Marty Zvirbulis Nicholson Family Trust  
Brian Lee San Antonio Water Company  

APPROPRIATIVE POOL COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Braden Yu City of Upland 
Ben Lewis Golden State Water Company  
Stephanie Reimer for Justin Scott-Coe Monte Vista Irrigation Company  
Stephanie Reimer for Justin Scott-Coe Monte Vista Water District 
Braden Yu West End Consolidated Water Company 

APPROPRIATIVE POOL COMMITTEE LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT ON ZOOM 
John Schatz John J. Schatz, Attorney at Law 

WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
James Curatalo Cucamonga Valley Water District 
Jimmy Medrano Agricultural Pool – State of CA  
Mike Gardner Western Municipal Water District 
Bob Kuhn Three Valleys Municipal Water District 

WATERMASTER STAFF PRESENT 
Edgar Tellez Foster Acting General Manager 
Justin Nakano Water Resources Technical Manager 
Frank Yoo Data Services and Judgment Reporting Mgr. 
Daniela Uriarte Senior Accountant 
Alexandria Moore Executive Assistant I/Board Clerk 
Alonso Jurado Senior Field Operations Specialist 
Ruby Favela Administrative Assistant  
Jordan Garcia Senior Field Operations Specialist 
Erik Vides Field Operations Specialist  
Rudy Nunez Office Specialist/Receptionist  

WATERMASTER CONSULTANTS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Andy Malone West Yost 

Page 1



Draft Minutes Appropriative Pool Committee Meeting  February 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 4 
 
WATERMASTER CONSULTANTS PRESENT ON ZOOM  
Brad Herrema  Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
Scott Nelsen Eide Bailly, LLP 
Garrett Rapp West Yost 
 
OTHERS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Chad Nishida       City of Ontario  
Melissa Cansino      City of Pomona  
John Bosler       Cucamonga Valley Water District 
Jiwon Seung       Cucamonga Valley Water District 
Bryan Smith       Jurupa Community Services District 
 
OTHERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Natalie Avila       City of Chino 
Hye Jin Lee       City of Chino  
Nicole deMoet       City of Upland 
Kyle Benoit County of San Bernardino 
Eduardo Espinoza      Cucamonga Valley Water District 
Peter Dopulos  Egoscue Law Group, Inc 
Shawnda Grady  Ellison Schneider Harris & Donlan LLP 
Derek Hoffman Fennemore Law 
Manny Martinez  Monte Vista Water District  
Bill Wyat       Sheppard, Mullin, Richter & Hampton 
Imelda Cadigal State of CA  
Lewis Callahan State of CA  
Marilyn Levin State of CA  
David De Jesus Three Valleys Municipal Water District 
Nicole deMoet West End Consolidated Water Company 
Joshua Aguilar Western Municipal Water District  
Mallory Gandara Western Municipal Water District 
Ryan Shaw Western Municipal Water District  
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Diggs called the Appropriative Pool Committee meeting to order at 9:00 a.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
(0:00:06) Ms. Moore conducted the roll call and announced that a quorum was present. 
 
AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER 
None 
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.   There will be 
no separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public 
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action. 
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
Minutes of the Annual Appropriative Pool Committee Meeting held on January 11, 2024  

 
 
 

Page 2



Draft Minutes Appropriative Pool Committee Meeting  February 8, 2024 
Page 3 of 4 
 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS  
Receive and file as presented: 
Monthly Financial Report for the Reporting Period Ending December 31, 2023 

 
(0:02:10) 
Motion by Ms. Amanda Coker, seconded by Mr. Cris Fealy, there being no dissent, the item 
passed unanimously.  

                  Moved to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. 
 
II. BUSINESS ITEMS  

A. PEACE AGREEMENT TIMELINE (INFORMATION ONLY)  
 
(0:02:33) Mr. Tellez Foster gave a presentation. A discussion ensued.  

 
III. REPORTS/UPDATES 

A. WATERMASTER LEGAL COUNSEL 
1. February 2, 2024 Court Hearing (Watermaster Board Reappointment and GLMP Annual 

Report)  
2. May 31, 2024 Court Hearing (Watermaster 46th Annual Report)  
3. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 (City of Chino, MVIC, MVWD, City of Ontario appeal re 

OAP Expenses and Attorney Fees)  
4. Court of Appeal Consolidated Cases No. E080457 and E082127 (City of Ontario appeal re 

2021- 22 and 2022-23 Assessment Packages)  
5. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533 (Cities of Chino, Ontario appeal re 2022-23 Watermaster 

budget expenses to support CEQA analysis)  
6. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit 
 
(0:05:05) Mr. Herrema gave a report.   

 
B. ENGINEER  

1. Ground-Level Monitoring Program 
2. Water Quality Committee 
3. 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation  
 
(0:09:32) Mr. Malone gave a report on items 1 and 2, and Mr. Rapp gave a report on item 3.  
 

C. GENERAL MANAGER 
1. Regional Reliability Study 
2. Diversion Permits Reporting 
3. San Sevaine Drone Footage 
4. Other 

 
(0:19:55) Mr. Tellez Foster gave an update on items 1 and 2 and invited Mr. Nakano to give a 
report on item 3. Under item 4, Mr. Tellez Foster reported that the Minor Representatives 
appointed San Antonio Water Company as Minor 1 and Santa Ana River Water Company as 
Minor 2 on the calendar year 2024 Advisory Committee. 
 

IV. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS 
None 

 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 

None 
 

 
 Page 3



Draft Minutes Appropriative Pool Committee Meeting  February 8, 2024 
Page 4 of 4 
 

VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION – POSSIBLE ACTION 
A Confidential Session may be held during the Pool Committee meeting for the purpose of discussion 
and possible action. 
 
The Pool convened into confidential session at 9:29 a.m. to AP Business.  

 
(0:29:29) Confidential session concluded at 10:35 a.m. with the reportable action as shown below: 
 

1. Motion: To approve AG legal bill as follows:  
$8,550.00 for general counsel – January 2024 Invoice (Dec. 2023 billing) 

Motion made by Amanda Coker, (CVWD), and seconded by Ron Craig, (City of 
Chino Hills): Passed by 63.524% volume votes in favor. 

 
ADJOURNMENT  
Chair Diggs adjourned the Appropriative Pool Committee meeting at 10:35 a.m. 
 
             Secretary: ____________________________ 
 
Approved: ________                     _____________ 
 
Attachment:  

1. 20240208 Appropriative Pool Committee Meeting (Reportable Action from Confidential Session as 
provided by Pool Leadership.) 

Page 4



From: Cansino, Melissa
To: Alexandria Moore
Cc: Diggs, Chris
Subject: AP Closed Session Meeting - Motion To Approve Jan. 2024 AG Legal Bill
Date: Thursday, February 8, 2024 1:57:29 PM
Attachments: image002.png

Hi Alex,

The AP held its closed session meeting at 9:37 AM, concluding at 10:26 AM. I've attached the sign-in sheet for your convenience.

Motion: To approve the AG legal bill as follows:

$8,550.00 for general counsel – Jan. 2024 Invoice (Dec. 2023 billing)
Motion made by Amanda Coker (CVWD), seconded by Ron Craig (CHNH): Passed with 63.524% in favor.

Thank you,
Melissa Cansino
City of Pomona ~ Water Resources Department
(909) 620-2236
Melissa.Cansino@pomonaca.gov

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 5

mailto:Melissa.Cansino@pomonaca.gov
mailto:amoore@cbwm.org
mailto:Chris.Diggs@pomonaca.gov
mailto:Melissa.Cansino@pomonaca.gov



DRAFT MINUTES 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEETING 
February 8, 2024 

 
The Non-Agricultural Pool committee meeting was held at the Watermaster offices located at 9641 San 
Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA, and via Zoom (conference call and web meeting) on February 
8, 2024. 
 
NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Brian Geye, Chair California Speedway Corporation 
 
NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Bob Bowcock, Vice-Chair      CalMat Co.  
Alexis Mascarinas      City of Ontario 
Michael Adler       Hamner Park Associates 
 
WATERMASTER STAFF PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Edgar Tellez Foster Acting General Manager 
Justin Nakano Water Resources Technical Manager 
Frank Yoo Data Services and Judgment Reporting Mgr. 
Daniela Uriarte Senior Accountant 
Alexandria Moore Executive Assistant I/Board Clerk 
Alonso Jurado Senior Field Operations Specialist 
Ruby Favela Administrative Assistant  
Jordan Garcia Senior Field Operations Specialist 
Erik Vides Field Operations Specialist  
Rudy Nunez Office Specialist/Receptionist  
 
WATERMASTER CONSULTANTS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Andy Malone West Yost 
 
WATERMASTER CONSULTANTS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Brad Herrema  Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
Scott Nelsen       Eide Bailly, LLP 
Garret Rapp       West Yost 
 
OTHERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Peter Dopulos       Egoscue Law Group, Inc. 
Kyle Benoit       County of San Bernardino 
Michael Mayer       County of San Bernardino 
Lewis Callahan      State of CA 
 
NON-AGRICULTURAL POOL LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Allen Hubsch Law Office of Allen Hubsch 
  
CALL TO ORDER  
Chair Geye called the Non-Agricultural Pool committee meeting to order at 11:00 a.m.    
 
ROLL CALL 
(00:00:06) Ms. Moore conducted the roll call. 
 
 
 

Page 6



Draft Minutes Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting   February 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 4 
 
AGENDA – ADDITIONS/REORDER 
None 
 
I. BUSINESS ITEMS - ROUTINE 

A. MINUTES 
Receive and File: 
1. Minutes of the Annual Non-Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting held on January 11, 2024  
 
(00:02:14) Chair Geye requested a non-substantive change to the January 11, 2024 minutes item 
III.A. indicating the representation changes on the Non-Agricultural Pool Committee is effective on 
January 1, 2024.  

 
(00:03:24) 
Motion by Ms. Alexis Mascarinas, seconded by Mr. Bob Bowcock. The Chair called for dissent, 
and, none being noted, the motion was deemed passed by unanimous vote of those present. 

Moved to receive and file Business Item I.A. with the change as noted above. 
 

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS  
Receive and file as presented: 
Monthly Financial Report for the Reporting Period Ended December 31, 2023 

 
(00:03:50) 
Motion by Ms. Alexis Mascarinas, seconded by Mr. Bob Bowcock. The Chair called for dissent, 
and, none being noted, the motion was deemed passed by unanimous vote of those present. 

Moved to receive and file Business Item I.B. without approval as presented. 
 
II. BUSINESS ITEMS  

A. PEACE AGREEMENT TIMELINE (INFORMATION ONLY)  
 

(00:04:04) Mr. Tellez Foster gave a presentation. A discussion ensued.  
 

B. MEMBER STATUS CHANGES 
1. Any proposed transfer of Safe Yield by a Member. 
2. Any transfer of Safe Yield that has actually closed or been completed. 
3. Any change in name or corporate identity of a Member (such as results from a merger or filing 

of a change of name certificate). 
4. Any change in the name of a representative or alternate representative of a Member, or a 

change in e-mail address for either such person. 
 

(00:07:00) Ms. Moore reported that on January 22, 2024, Mr. Tyson Chave, Sr. VP indicated that 
he will be the primary representative for CCG; his email is tchave@prologis.com, and Ms. Sharon 
Pangan, Property Manager will be the alternate; her email is spangan@prologis.com.   

 
III. REPORTS/UPDATES 

A. WATERMASTER LEGAL COUNSEL 
1. February 2, 2024, Court Hearing (Watermaster Board Reappointment and GLMP Annual 

Report)  
2. May 31, 2024, Court Hearing (Watermaster 46th Annual Report)  
3. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 (City of Chino, MVIC, MVWD, City of Ontario appeal re 

OAP Expenses and Attorney Fees)  
4. Court of Appeal Consolidated Cases No. E080457 and E082127 (City of Ontario appeal re 

2021- 22 and 2022-23 Assessment Packages)  
 

Page 7

mailto:tchave@prologis.com
mailto:spangan@prologis.com


Draft Minutes Non-Agricultural Pool Meeting   February 8, 2024 
Page 3 of 4 
 

5. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533 (Cities of Chino, Ontario appeal re 2022-23 Watermaster 
budget expenses to support CEQA analysis)  

6. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit 
 

   (00:07:40) Mr. Herrema gave a report. A discussion ensued.  
 

B. ENGINEER  
1. Ground-Level Monitoring Program 
2. Water Quality Committee 
3. 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation  

 
   (00:12:19) Mr. Malone gave a report.  
 

C. GENERAL MANAGER 
1. Regional Reliability Study 
2. Diversion Permits Reporting 
3. San Sevaine Drone Footage 
4. Other 
 
(00:18:26) Mr. Tellez Foster gave an update on items 1 and 2 and invited Mr. Nakano to give a 
report on item 3. Under item 4, Mr. Tellez Foster reported that the Minor Representatives 
appointed San Antonio Water Company as Minor 1 and Santa Ana River Water Company as Minor 
2 on the calendar year 2024 Advisory Committee. 

 
IV. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 None 
 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 

 None 
 

VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION 
A Confidential Session may be held during the Pool Committee meeting for the purpose of discussion 
and possible action. 

        
       None  
 
ADJOURNMENT 
    
Chair Geye adjourned the Non-Agricultural Pool Committee meeting at 11:25 a.m. 
 
 
            Secretary: ____________                               ___ 
 
Approved: ________                                       ___ 

Page 8



DRAFT MINUTES 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEETING 
February 8, 2024 

The Agricultural Pool committee meeting was held at the Watermaster offices located at 9641 San 
Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA, and via Zoom (conference call and web meeting) on 
February 8, 2024.  

AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Bob Feenstra, Chair Dairy 
Ruben Llamas Crops 
Christen Miller County of San Bernardino 
Imelda Cadigal State of California - CDCR 
Jimmy Medrano State of California - CDCR 
Tariq Awan State of California - CDCR 

AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Jeff Pierson, Vice-Chair Crops 
Ron LaBrucherie Crops 
Nathan deBoom Dairy 
Henry DeHaan Dairy 
John Huitsing Dairy 

WATERMASTER STAFF PRESENT 
Edgar Tellez Foster Acting General Manager 
Justin Nakano Water Resources Technical Manager 
Frank Yoo Data Services and Judgment Reporting Mgr. 
Daniela Uriarte Senior Accountant 
Alexandria Moore Executive Assistant I/Board Clerk 
Alonso Jurado Senior Field Operations Specialist 
Ruby Favela Administrative Assistant  
Jordan Garcia Senior Field Operations Specialist 
Erik Vides Field Operations Specialist  
Rudy Nunez Office Specialist/Receptionist 

WATERMASTER CONSULTANTS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Andy Malone West Yost 

WATERMASTER CONSULTANTS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Brad Herrema  Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
Scott Nelsen Eide Bailly, LLP 
Garret Rapp  West Yost 

OTHERS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Gino Filippi  Crops 
Paul Hofer Crops 
Tracy Egoscue Egoscue Law Group, Inc. 
Richard Rees  WSP USA 

OTHERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Diana Frederick State of California – CDCR 
Lewis Callahan State of California – CDCR 
Carol Boyd  State of California – DOJ 
Marilyn Levin  State of California – DOJ 

Page 9



Draft Minutes Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting  February 8, 2024 
Page 2 of 4 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
Chair Feenstra called the Agricultural Pool committee meeting to order at 1:30 p.m. 
 
ROLL CALL 
(0:0:40) Ms. Moore conducted the roll call and announced that a quorum was present. 
 
AGENDA - ADDITIONS/REORDER 
(0:02:50) Vice-Chair Jeff Pierson requested to pull Consent Calendar Item I.A. for separate discussion. 
Ms. Egoscue provided the Pool with a redline version of the minutes including the suggested changes of 
the revision as shown in Attachment 2 below.  
 
I. CONSENT CALENDAR 

All matters listed under the Consent Calendar are considered to be routine and non-
controversial and will be acted upon by one motion in the form listed below.   There will be 
no separate discussion on these items prior to voting unless any members, staff, or the public 
requests specific items be discussed and/or removed from the Consent Calendar for separate 
action. 
 
A. MINUTES 

Approve as presented: 
1. Minutes of the Annual Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting held on January 11, 2024  

 
B. FINANCIAL REPORTS  

Receive and file as presented: 
Monthly Financial Report for the Reporting Period Ended December 31, 2023. 

 
(0:08:36)  
Motion by Vice-Chair Jeff Pierson, seconded by Mr. Ruben Llamas, and passed by unanimous 
roll call vote as attached to these minutes. 

Moved to approve the Consent Calendar with the modifications to the January 11, 
2024 meeting minutes as shown in Attachment 2. 

 
II. BUSINESS ITEMS  

A. PEACE AGREEMENT TIMELINE (INFORMATION ONLY) 
 
(0:25:00) Mr. Tellez Foster gave a presentation. A discussion ensued.   

 
B. OLD BUSINESS  

None 
 

III. REPORTS/UPDATES 
A. WATERMASTER LEGAL COUNSEL 

1. February 2, 2024 Court Hearing (Watermaster Board Reappointment and GLMP Annual 
Report)  

2. May 31, 2024 Court Hearing (Watermaster 46th Annual Report)  
3. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 (City of Chino, MVIC, MVWD, City of Ontario appeal re 

OAP Expenses and Attorney Fees)  
4. Court of Appeal Consolidated Cases No. E080457 and E082127 (City of Ontario appeal re 

2021- 22 and 2022-23 Assessment Packages)  
5. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533 (Cities of Chino, Ontario appeal re 2022-23 Watermaster 

budget expenses to support CEQA analysis)  
6. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit 

 
(0:42:34) Mr. Herrema gave a report. A discussion ensued.  

Page 10



Draft Minutes Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting  February 8, 2024 
Page 3 of 4 
 

B. ENGINEER  
1. Ground-Level Monitoring Program 
2. Water Quality Committee 
3. 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation  
 
(0:48:59) Mr. Malone gave a report on items 1 and 2, and Mr. Rapp gave a report on item 3. 
 

C. GENERAL MANAGER 
1. Reliability Study 
2. Diversion Permits Reporting 
3. San Sevaine Drone Footage 
4. Other 

 
(1:02:15) Mr. Tellez Foster gave an update on items 1 and 2 and invited Mr. Nakano to give a 
report on item 3. Under item 4, Mr. Tellez Foster reported that the Minor Representatives 
appointed San Antonio Water Company as Minor 1 and Santa Ana River Water Company as 
Minor 2 on the calendar year 2024 Advisory Committee. 
 

IV. POOL DISCUSSION 
1. Chairman’s Update 
2. Pool Member Comments 

  
(1:07:18) Mr. Gino Filippi gifted Watermaster historic pictures from a flood that occurred fifty 
years ago.  
(1:17:02) Vice-Chair Pierson honored Mr. Bob Deberard, former Agricultural Pool Chairman for 
implanting a storm basin in West Riverside area.   

 
V. OTHER BUSINESS 
 None 
 
VI. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION - POSSIBLE ACTION 

A Confidential Session may be held during the Pool Committee meeting for the purpose of discussion 
and possible action. 
 
The Pool convened into Confidential Session at 2:48 p.m. to discuss the following: 
 

1. Administrative Issues 
2. Peace Agreement Timeline 
3. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 (City of Chino, MVIC, MVWD, City of Ontario appeal re 

OAP Expenses and Attorney Fees)  
4. Strategic Planning 

 
Confidential Session concluded at 3:39 p.m. with no reportable action. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Draft Minutes Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting February 8, 2024 
Page 4 of 4 

ADJOURNMENT 
Chair Feenstra did not wish to reconvene into open session, and the Agricultural Pool Committee meeting 
was adjourned at 3:39 p.m. as provided by Pool counsel via email as shown in Attachment 3. 

  Secretary: _________  ______ 

Approved: _________   __ 

Attachments: 
1. 20240208 Roll Call Vote Outcome for Consent Calendar
2. 20240208 Revised Redline January 11, 2024 Annual Agricultural Pool Meeting 

Minutes
3. Adjournment (Email from Legal Counsel)

Page 12



Member Alternate Consent Calendar 
LaBrucherie, Jr., Ron* Yes
Pierson, Jeff, Vice-Chair* Yes
deBoom, Nathan* Yes
DeHaan, Henry* Yes
Huitsing, John* Yes
Pietersma, Ron Absent
Llamas, Ruben Yes
Miller, Christen Yes
Awan, Tariq Yes
Cadigal, Imelda Yes
Medrano, Jimmy Yes
Feenstra, Bob - Chair Yes

OUTCOME: Passed Unanimously

*Participated via Zoom

20240208 Roll Call Vote Outcome 

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 13



DRAFT MINUTES 
CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 

ANNUAL AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEETING 
January 11, 2024 

The annual Agricultural Pool Committee meeting was held at the Watermaster offices located at 9641 San 
Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA, and via Zoom (conference call and web meeting) on January 
11, 2024. 

AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Bob Feenstra, Chair Dairy 
Jeff Pierson, Vice-Chair Crops 
Ruben Llamas Crops 
Gino Filippi for Ron Pietersma Crops 
Christen Mitchell County of San Bernardino 
John Huitsing Dairy 
Tariq Awan State of California – CDCR 
Imelda Cadigal State of California – CDCR 
Jimmy Medrano State of California – CDCR 

AGRICULTURAL POOL COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Nathan deBoom Dairy 
Henry DeHaan Dairy 
Geoffrey Vanden Heuvel Dairy 

AGRICULTURAL POOL LEGAL COUNSEL PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Tracy Egoscue Egoscue Law Group, Inc. 

WATERMASTER BOARD MEMBERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Mike Gardner Western Municipal Water District 

WATERMASTER STAFF PRESENT 
Edgar Tellez Foster Acting General Manager 
Anna Nelson Director of Administration 
Justin Nakano Water Resources Technical Manager 
Frank Yoo Data Services and Judgment Reporting Mgr. 
Daniela Uriarte Senior Accountant 
Alexandria Moore Executive Assistant I/Board Clerk 
Ruby Favela Quintero Administrative Assistant 
Rudy Nunez Office Specialist/Receptionist 
Alonso Jurado Water Resources Associate 
Jordan Garcia Senior Field Operations Specialist 
Erik Vides Field Operations Specialist 

WATERMASTER CONSULTANTS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER 
Andy Malone West Yost 

WATERMASTER CONSULTANTS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
Laura Yraceburu for Brad Herrema Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck, LLP 
Garrett Rapp West Yost 
Scott Nelsen Eide Bailly, LLP 

ATTACHMENT 2

Page 14



Draft Minutes Annual Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting                                                             January 11, 2024 
Page 2 of 7 

 
  OTHERS PRESENT AT WATERMASTER  
  Paul Hofer Crops 
  Richard Rees WSP USA 
  Steven Raughley County of San Bernardino  
 
  OTHERS PRESENT ON ZOOM 
  Hye Jin Lee City of Chino  
  Carol Boyd State of California – DOJ 
  Lewis Callahan State of California - CDCR 
  Diana Frederick State of California – CDCR 
  Marilyn Levin State of California – DOJ 
 
  CALL TO ORDER 
  Mr. Feenstra called the Agricultural Pool committee meeting to order at 1:33 p.m.  
 

ROLL CALL 
  (0:01:07) Ms. Moore conducted the roll call and announced that a quorum was present. 
 

AGENDA – ADDITIONS/REORDER 
None 

 

I. ANNUAL ELECTIONS (ACTION) 
 

A. CALENDAR YEAR 2024 AGRICULTURAL POOL MEMBERS 
According to the Overlying (Agricultural) Pool Rules and Regulations the Agricultural Pool 
membership shall consist of not less than nine (9) representatives selected at large by members 
of the Pool. Pool members will be asked to make any necessary changes to the following list to 
establish pool membership and alternates during Calendar Year 2024: 
 
(0:04:25) Mr. Feenstra turned the meeting over to Ms. Egoscue, the Agricultural Pool Committee’s 
counsel, to run the annual elections. The 2024 representatives and alternates for Dairy, State, and 
County are approved as shown below. 

 
2023 Agricultural Pool Members 2024 Agricultural Pool Members 
Dairy: Robert Feenstra Dairy: Robert Feenstra  

Nathan deBoom Nathan deBoom  
Henry De Haan Henry De Haan  
John Huitsing John Huitsing  
Ron Pietersma Ron Pietersma   

 

            Crops: Jeff Pierson             Crops     Jeff Pierson ______ 
  Ron LaBrucherie, Jr.   Ron LaBrucherie, Jr.   
  Ruben Llamas   Ruben Llamas  

 
 

  State:   Tariq Awan   State:   Tariq Awan  
  Leon “Kaz” Kazandjian   Imelda Cadigal  
  Jimmy Medrano   Jimmy Medrano  

 

              County: Steven Raughley                              County:  Christen Mitchell______ 
 
 
 Page 15



Draft Minutes Annual Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting                                                             January 11, 2024 
Page 3 of 7 
 

2023 Alternates 2024 Alternates 
              Crops:   Paul Hofer                                        Crops:   Gino Filippi___________ 
                             Gino Filippi                Paul Hofer ___________ 
                             Ruben Llamas             Geoffrey Vanden Heuvel 
                              

State:   Carol Boyd    State:   Carol Boyd  
  Diana Frederick   Lewis Callahan  
  Noah Golden-Krasner   Diana Frederick  
     Noah Golden-Krasner  
  Marilyn Levin   Marilyn Levin  
  Gregor Larabee   Gregor Larabee  

 
 County:   Bradley Jensen County: Trevor Leja  

 
(0:06:01) 
Motion by Vice-Chair Jeff Pierson, seconded by Mr. Ruben Llamas, and passed by unanimous roll 
call vote as attached to these minutes. 

Moved to approve the 2024 Agricultural Pool Committee membership and alternates, 
as shown above in I.A.  

 
(1:03:52) 
Motion by Mr. Goeffrey Vanden Huevel, seconded by Vice-Chair Jeff Pierson, and passed by 
unanimous roll call vote as attached to these minutes. 

Moved to approve the reconsideration of adding Mr. Paul Hofer as an Alternate 
Member, as shown above in I.A.  
 

(1:06:11) 
Motion by Vice-Chair Jeff Pierson, seconded by Mr. Ruben Llamas, and passed by unanimous roll 
call vote as attached to these minutes. 

Moved to approve to add Mr. Paul Hofer as an Alternate Member, as shown above in 
I.A.  

 
B.    ANNUAL ELECTIONS 

  Elect the following Calendar Year 2024 Officers of the Pool: Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary, 
Treasurer, and Assistant Secretaries and Treasurers as may be appropriate. 

 
Chair         Bob Feenstra______________  

Vice-Chair        Jeff Pierson__________   

Secretary        Watermaster General Manager 

Treasurer        John Huitsing______________ 
 

 (0:07:46) Ms. Egoscue, the Agricultural Pool Committee’s counsel conducted the annual election 
of officers. 

 
  (0:08:49)  

Motion by Mr. John Huitsing, seconded by Mr. Henry De Haan, and by unanimous roll call vote as 
attached to these minutes. 

Moved to approve the Calendar Year 2024 appointment of Agricultural Pool 
Committee Chair, Vice-Chair, Secretary, and Treasurer as shown above in I.B. 
 
 
  
 

 
 

Page 16



Draft Minutes Annual Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting     January 11, 2024 
Page 4 of 7 

C. ELECTION OF CALENDAR YEAR 2024 ADVISORY COMMITTEE MEMBERS
According to the Agricultural Pool Pooling Plan, the Pool shall designate up to 10 members of the
Pool Committee, and their alternates, to serve on the Advisory Committee.

(0:18:31)
Motion by Vice-Chair Jeff Pierson, seconded by Mr. Henry De Haan, and by unanimous roll call 
vote as attached to these minutes. 

Moved to approve the Calendar Year 2024 appointment of the Agricultural Pool 
Committee members and their alternates to serve on the 2024 Advisory Committee. 
There are 10 members and 10 alternates who may serve in the place of any member. 

Members are as follows: 

Chair Feenstra 
Vice Chair Pierson 
Ruben Llamas 
Nathan DeBoom 
Henry DeHaan 
John Huitsing 
Ron Pietersma 
Tariq Awan 
Jimmy Medrano 
Imelda Cadigal 

Alternates are as follows: 

Gino Filippi 
Paul Hofer 
Geoffrey Vanden Heuvel 
Ron LaBrucherie, Jr. 
Carol Boyd 
Lewis Callahan 
Diana Frederick 
Noah Golden-Krasner 
Marilyn Levin 
Gregor Larabee 

The County representatives waived their seats on Advisory. 

D. CALENDAR YEAR 2024 AGRICULTURAL POOL MEMBER APPOINTED TO SERVE
AS ADVISORY COMMITTEE OFFICER
Appoint a designated representative to serve as an officer of the Advisory Committee during
Calendar Year 2024. According to the rotation sequence established among the Pools, the
Agricultural Pool appointee will be filling the position of Chair.

Agricultural Pool Officer (Chair) Appointment to the Advisory Committee:
Jeff Pierson__________

(0:21:35)
Motion by Mr. Bob Feenstra, seconded by Mr. Jimmy Medrano, and by unanimous roll call vote as
attached to these minutes.

Moved to approve the Calendar Year 2024 Agricultural Pool Committee member 
appointed to serve as the Advisory Committee Officer as shown above in I.D. 

Page 17



Draft Minutes Annual Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting     January 11, 2024 
Page 5 of 7 

E. APPOINTMENT OF CALENDAR YEAR 2024 POOL REPRESENTATION ON
WATERMASTER BOARD
According to the Board rotation schedule filed with the Court in 2000 and updated on November 
17, 2015, for calendar year 2024, the Agricultural Pool is to appoint two (2) representatives 
and alternate(s), one State and one Dairy seat, to serve on the Board for the Calendar Year.

Member: Jeff Pierson Alternate: Robert Feenstra/Ron Pietersma

Member: Jimmy Medrano Alternate: Lewis Callahan

 Diana Frederick 

(0:37:45)  
 Motion by Vice-Chair Jeff Pierson, seconded by Mr. Henry De Haan, and by majority roll call vote 
as attached to these minutes. 

Moved to approve the Calendar Year 2024 Agricultural Pool Committee members 
and alternates appointed to serve on the Watermaster Board as shown above in I.E. 
Vice Chair Motion “Allow the alternates for the two positions on the Board in case 
of an absence and an alternate not being able to fill their obligation, any one 
of the alternates that we have identified from the Ag Pool can fill that position.” 
Restated by General Counsel before the vote: “All of the alternates may serve for 
either position as needed.” 

II. CONSENT CALENDAR
A. MINUTES

Approve as presented:
1. Minutes of the Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting held November 9, 2023
2. Minutes of the Agricultural Pool Committee Special Meeting held December 14, 2023

B. FINANCIAL REPORTS
Receive and file as presented:
Monthly Financial Reports for the Reporting Periods Ended October and November 2023

C. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 2024 INVESTMENT POLICY – RESOLUTION NO. 2024-01
Provide advice and assistance on the Watermaster investment policy and corresponding Resolution
2024-01.

D. CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 46TH ANNUAL REPORT (FISCAL YEAR 2022/23)
Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Watermaster Board to adopt the 46th
Annual Report, along with filing a copy with the Court, subject to any necessary non-substantive
changes.

E. APPLICATION: WATER TRANSACTION – CITY OF ONTARIO TO CUCAMONGA VALLEY
WATER DISTRICT
Provide advice and assistance to the Advisory Committee on the proposed transaction.

F. APPLICATION: RECHARGE – CITY OF POMONA
Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Board to approve The City of Pomona’s
application for recharge and direct staff to account for the same.

(01:09:00) Page 18



Draft Minutes Annual Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting                                                             January 11, 2024 
Page 6 of 7 

Motion by Vice-Chair Jeff Pierson, seconded by Mr. Ruben Llamas, and passed by unanimous roll 
call vote as attached to these minutes. 

Moved to approve the Consent Calendar as presented. 
 

III. BUSINESS ITEMS  
 None 
 
IV. REPORTS/UPDATES 

A. LEGAL COUNSEL  
1. December 1, 2023 Court Hearing (OBMP Semi-Annual Status Report and 2023 Recharge 

Master Plan Update)  
2. February 2, 2024 Court Hearing (Watermaster Board Reappointment and GLMP Annual 

Report) 
3. Court of Appeal Case No. E079052 (City of Chino, MVIC, MVWD, City of Ontario appeal re 

OAP Expenses and Attorney Fees)  
4. Court of Appeal Consolidated Cases No. E080457 and E082127 (City of Ontario appeal re 

2021- 22 and 2022-23 Assessment Packages)  
5. Court of Appeal Case No. E080533 (Cities of Chino, Ontario appeal re 2022-23 Watermaster 

budget expenses to support CEQA analysis)  
6. Kaiser Permanente Lawsuit 
 
(01:10:27) Ms. Yraceburu gave a report on behalf of Mr. Herrema. 
 

B. ENGINEER 
1. Safe Yield Court Order Implementation 
2. Storage and Recovery Master Plan 
3. Water Quality Committee 
4. Updated Schedules on Watermaster Website 

 
(01:18:45) Mr. Rapp gave a report on items 1 and 2. Mr. Malone gave a report on items 2 and 3. 

D.  GENERAL MANAGER 
1. Fiscal Year 2023/24 Exhibit “G” Physical Solution Transfers 
2. Calendar Year 2024 Letters of CBWM Representation 
3. Calendar Year 2024 Hearing Officer Panel 
4. DYY Deliveries  
5. OBMP Update CEQA 
6. Other 
 
(01:26:51) Mr. Tellez Foster introduced Mr. Yoo to give a report on item 1, and Ms. Moore for items 
2 and 3. Under item 4, he gave an update indicating that DYY deliveries will stop in January.  
 
On item 5, he mentioned that IEUA has received all comments for the OBMP Update CEQA, and the 
IEUA Board will bring this item for certification in February. He reported that Watermaster has 
discontinued its fax line as a cost savings due to low usage. 

 
V. POOL MEMBER COMMENTS 
 (01:36:33) Mr. Filippi commented that the late Mr. Don Galleano would be happy to hear about the 

recharge in the basin. 
 
VI. OTHER BUSINESS 
 None 
 
 
 
VII. CONFIDENTIAL SESSION – POSSIBLE ACTION   

Page 19



Draft Minutes Annual Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting                                                             January 11, 2024 
Page 7 of 7 
 A Confidential Session may be held during the Pool Committee meeting for the purpose of discussion 

and possible action. 
 

 The Pool convened into Confidential Session at 3:10 p.m. to discuss the following: 
 

1. Strategic Planning 
 

 Confidential Session concluded at 4:04 p.m. with no reportable action. 
 
ADJOURNMENT     
Chair Feenstra did not wish to reconvene into open session, and the annual Agricultural Pool Committee 
meeting was adjourned at 4:04 p.m. as provided by Pool counsel via email as attached to these minutes. 
 
 
             Secretary: _________________________________ 
 
 
Approved: _______                             __________ 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. 20240111 Roll Call Vote Outcome for Annual Elections I.A. 
2. 20240111 Roll Call Vote Outcome for Annual Elections I.A. (Reconsideration to reopen Item I.A. to 

add Mr. Hofer as an Alternate Member) 
3. 20240111 Roll Call Vote Outcome for Annual Elections I.A. (Sub Motion to add Mr. Hofer as an 

Alternate Member) 
4. 20240111 Roll Call Vote Outcome for Annual Elections I.B. 
5. 20240111 Roll Call Vote Outcome for Annual Elections I.C. 
6. 20240111 Roll Call Vote Outcome for Annual Elections I.D. 
7. 20240111 Roll Call Vote Outcome for Annual Elections I.E. 
8. 20240111 Roll Call Vote Outcome for Consent Calendar II.A.-H. 
9. Adjournment (Email from Legal Counsel) 

Page 20



From: Tracy Egoscue
To: Alexandria Moore; Edgar Tellez Foster; Herrema, Brad
Cc: Bob Feenstra; Jeff Pierson
Subject: Ag Pool Closed Session
Date: Thursday, February 8, 2024 3:40:36 PM

The Agricultural Pool closed session ended at 3:39pm with no reportable action. 

Tracy J. Egoscue (she/her)
Egoscue Law Group, Inc.
562.988.5978 office
562.981.4866 cell
tracy@egoscuelaw.com
www.egoscuelaw.com

"CONFIDENTIALITY NOTICE:     Do not read this e-mail if you are not the intended recipient.  This e-mail
transmission, and any documents, files or previous e-mail messages attached to it may contain confidential
information that is legally privileged.  If you are not the intended recipient, or a person responsible for delivering it
to the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any disclosure, copying, distribution or use of any of the
information contained in or attached to this transmission is prohibited.  If you have received this transmission in
error, please immediately advise us by reply e-mail, by forwarding this to tracy@egoscuelaw.com or by calling
(562) 988-5978, and destroy the original transmission and its attachments without reading or saving them in any
manner. Thank you."

-- 

ATTACHMENT 3

Page 21

mailto:tracy@egoscuelaw.com
mailto:amoore@cbwm.org
mailto:etellezfoster@cbwm.org
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=user01599506
mailto:bobfeenstra@gmail.com
mailto:jpierson@intexcorp.com
mailto:tracy@egoscuelaw.com


Watermaster’s function is to administer and enforce provisions of the Judgment and subsequent orders of the Court, 
and to develop and implement an Optimum Basin Management Program 

EDGAR TELLEZ FOSTER, PhD 
 Acting General Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 2024 

TO: Watermaster Committees & Board 

SUBJECT: Monthly Financial Reports (For the Reporting Periods Ended January 31, 2024) (Consent 
Calendar Item I.B.) 

SUMMARY 

Issue:  Record of Monthly Financial Reports for the reporting periods ended January 31, 2024) 
[Normal Course of Business] 

Recommendation:  Receive and file Monthly Financials Reports for the reporting periods ended 
January 31, 2024) as presented.  

Financial Impact:  None. 

Future Consideration 
Appropriative Pool – March 14, 2024:  Receive and File  
Non-Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024:  Receive and File 
Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024:  Receive and File 
Advisory Committee – March 21, 2024:   
Watermaster Board – March 28, 2024:  
____________________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTIONS: 
Appropriative Pool – March 14, 2024:   
Non-Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024: 
Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024:   
Advisory Committee – March 21, 2024:   
Watermaster Board – March 28, 2024:  

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 

Tel:  909.484.3888         www.cbwm.org 

Page 22



       
Page 2 of 2  February 2024 
 
  

Watermaster’s function is to administer and enforce provisions of the Judgment and subsequent orders of the Court,  
and to develop and implement an Optimum Basin Management Program 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
A monthly reporting packet is provided to keep all members apprised of Watermaster revenues, 
expenditures, and other financial activity.  Monthly reports include the following: 
 
1. Cash Disbursements – Summarized report of all payments made during the reporting month. 
2. Credit Card Expense Detail – Detail report of all credit card activity during the reporting month. 
3. Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Assets – Detail report of all revenue 

and expense activity for the fiscal YTD, summarized by pool category. 
4. Treasurer’s Report – Summary of Watermaster investments holdings and anticipated earnings as of 

month end. 
5. Budget to Actual Report – Detail report of actual revenue and expense activity, shown for reporting 

month and YTD, comparatively to the adopted budget.  
6. Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules – Supporting schedule providing explanation for 

major budget variances. Also provides several additional tables detailing pool fund balance, salaries 
expense, legal expense, and engineering expense.  

 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
Detailed explanation of major variances and other additional information can be found on the “Monthly 
Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules.”  
 
Watermaster staff is happy to provide additional explanation or respond to any questions on these reports.  
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. Monthly Financial Reports (January 31, 2024) 
 

Page 23



Chino Basin Watermaster
 Cash Disbursements 

January 2024

Date Number Vendor Name Description Amount

01/02/2024 ACH01/02/24 CALPERS January Medical Insurance Premiums (12,196.06)$     
01/02/2024 ACH1/2/24 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability-Plan 3299 (9,902.00)   
01/08/2024 24528 ACWA JOINT POWERS INSURANCE AUTHORITY February life insurance (183.39)   
01/08/2024 24529 CALIFORNIA BANK & TRUST Account ending 6198 - See detail attached (8,883.57)   
01/08/2024 24530 CONCENTRA Pre-employment screening (181.00)   
01/08/2024 24531 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT - UTILITY Water utility services for meter #16367513 (357.97)   
01/08/2024 24532 FIRST LEGAL NETWORK LLC Court filing services (343.02)   
01/08/2024 24533 FRONTIER COMMUNICATIONS Office alarm services (152.14)   
01/08/2024 24534 PITNEY BOWES GLOBAL FINANCIAL SVCS. Postage meter lease (454.87)   
01/08/2024 24535 PURCHASE POWER December postage refill (301.50)   
01/08/2024 24536 R&D PEST SERVICES January pest control services (100.00)   
01/08/2024 24537 STATE COMPENSATION INSURANCE FUND FY 24 Worker's compensation insurance (2,768.91)   
01/08/2024 24538 ULTIMATE STAFFING SERVICES Temporary employment services (2,951.20)   
01/08/2024 24539 UNION 76 December fuel purchases (271.99)   
01/08/2024 24540 USAFACT, INC. Pre-employment background check (130.90)   
01/08/2024 24541 VANGUARD CLEANING SYSTEMS January cleaning service (1,000.00)   
01/08/2024 24542 VC3, INC. December IT services (6,495.18)   
01/08/2024 24543 WAVE HR SOLUTIONS December human resources services (2,210.00)   
01/10/2024 ACH1/10/24 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT SYSTEM Annual Unfunded Accrued Liability-Plan 3299 (9,902.00)   
01/12/2024 24544 APPLIED COMPUTER TECHNOLOGIES December computer services (4,250.00)   
01/12/2024 24545 BOWCOCK, ROBERT (250.00)   
01/12/2024 24546 BURRTEC WASTE INDUSTRIES, INC. January waste services (160.73)   
01/12/2024 24547 CORELOGIC INFORMATION SOLUTIONS December computer services (125.00)   
01/12/2024 24548 CUCAMONGA  VALLEY WATER DISTRICT February lease (11,727.00)   
01/12/2024 24549 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT - UTILITY Water utility services for meter #09540195 (150.17)   
01/12/2024 24550 CURATALO, JAMES (1,625.00)   
01/12/2024 24551 DE BOOM, NATHAN (125.00)   
01/12/2024 24552 ELIE, STEVEN (125.00)   
01/12/2024 24553 EMPOWER LAB December coaching services (500.00)   
01/12/2024 24554 FILIPPI, GINO (125.00)   
01/12/2024 24555 GEYE, BRIAN (750.00)   
01/12/2024 24556 HUITSING, JOHN (750.00)   
01/12/2024 24557 KUHN, BOB (375.00)   
01/12/2024 24558 PIERSON, JEFFREY (5,125.00)   
01/12/2024 24559 PITNEY BOWES INC. Ink for machine (144.01)   
01/12/2024 24560 RON SHELLEY'S AUTOMOTIVE Vehicle maintenance services (232.22)   
01/12/2024 24561 SOUTHERN CA EDISON Electricity services (1,138.07)   
01/12/2024 24562 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON Electricity services (133.47)   
01/12/2024 24563 SPECTRUM ENTERPRISE January internet services (1,105.40)   
01/12/2024 24564 STANDARD INSURANCE CO. December life and disability services (632.72)   
01/12/2024 24565 THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DIST Leadership breakfast registration fees (90.00)   
01/12/2024 24566 ULTIMATE STAFFING SERVICES Temporary employment services (885.36)   
01/12/2024 24567 VERIZON WIRELESS Computer services (38.01)   
01/12/2024 24568 VISION SERVICE PLAN January vision insurance coverage (113.85)   
01/12/2024 24569 WESTERN MUNICIPAL WATER DISTRICT (125.00)   
01/17/2024 24570 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT - UTILITY Water utility services for meter #018166034 (30.13)   
01/17/2024 24571 GREAT AMERICA LEASING CORP. December copy machine lease (1,464.61)   
01/17/2024 24572 INLAND EMPIRE UTILITIES AGENCY Q3 Groundwater recharge O&M reimbursement (130,049.27)   
01/17/2024 24573 LEGAL SHIELD January employee legal insurance (145.45)   
01/17/2024 24574 RON SHELLEY'S AUTOMOTIVE Vehicle maintenance services (756.37)   
01/17/2024 24575 ULTIMATE STAFFING SERVICES Temporary employment services (1,180.48)   
01/17/2024 24576 VERIZON WIRELESS January telephone expense (276.47)   
01/19/2024 24577 CALIFORNIA GROUNDWATER COALITION 2024 membership dues (10,450.00)   
01/19/2024 24578 SANTA ANA WATERSHED PROJECT AUTHORITY FY 24 TMDL task force cost share allocation (9,357.00)   
01/19/2024 24579 TOM DODSON & ASSOCIATES OBMP Update (8,992.50)   
01/23/2024 24580 PITNEY BOWES INC. Red ink cartridge purchase (118.01)   
01/23/2024 24581 READY REFRESH Office water bottle lease (84.05)   
01/23/2024 24582 SOCALGAS Gas utilities (222.15)   
01/23/2024 24583 THREE VALLEYS MUNICIPAL WATER DIST Replenishment Water Order #20211118 and # 20231117 (1,874,730.20)   
01/23/2024 24584 ULTIMATE STAFFING SERVICES Temporary employment services (1,475.60)   
01/23/2024 24585 UNITED HEALTHCARE February dental insurance coverage (1,011.96)   
01/26/2024 24586 CUCAMONGA VALLEY WATER DISTRICT - UTILITY Water utility services for meter #16367513 and 09540195 (220.95)   

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 1 of 16Page 24



Chino Basin Watermaster
 Cash Disbursements 

January 2024

Date Number Vendor Name Description Amount

01/26/2024 24587 DE HAAN, HENRY (250.00)    
01/26/2024 24588 EIDE BAILLY LLP November consulting services (14,907.05)   
01/26/2024 24589 FEENSTRA, BOB (1,375.00)   
01/26/2024 24590 ULTIMATE STAFFING SERVICES Temporary employment services (885.36)    
01/26/2024 24591 VERIZON WIRELESS Computer services (38.01)   
01/26/2024 24592 WEST YOST December engineering services (144,440.67)    

Total for Month (2,292,048.00)$     

Page 2 of 16Page 25



 Chino Basin Watermaster
 Credit Card Expense Detail 

January 2024

Date Number Expense AccountDescription Amount

01/08/2024 24529 CALIFORNIA BANK & TRUST
ACWA Meeting - E. Tellez Foster, Elizabeth Hurst, Lisa Munoz 6141 · Meeting Expenses (52.26)   
ACWA Hotel - E. Tellez Foster 6191 · Conferences - General (482.56)       
Lunch Meeting- E. Tellez Foster, Alex Moore 6141 · Meeting Expenses (38.40)   
Flood Control Permits - P12012057, P11998284 6909.3 · Other OBMP Expenses (2,171.79)    
OPS Meeting Breakfast Meeting- CBWM OPS Team 6141 · Meeting Expenses (147.04)       
BSMAR Conference - Edgar Tellez Foster flight 6173 · Airfare/Mileage (580.96)       
BSMAR Conference - Edgar Tellez Foster registration 6191 · Conferences - General (400.00)       
REV Max Starter subscription 6112 · Subscriptions/Publications (29.99)   
Lunch Meeting- E. Tellez Foster, Scott Burton, Courtney Jones 6141 · Meeting Expenses (154.89)       
Annual Site Inspection - Zone 1 FCAP-011 6909.3 · Other OBMP Expenses (1,085.90)    
Misc. Office Supplies 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (31.86)   
Anna 10 year work Anniversary staff lunch 6141 · Meeting Expenses (193.92)       
SHRM 3 year renewal - Anna Nelson 6111 · Membership Dues (622.00)       
Misc. Office Supplies 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (39.97)   
Dock Stations and printer 6055 · Computer Hardware (599.67)       
BambooHR payroll system 6061.2 · Bamboo HR Consultant (225.04)       
Deposit - Christmas lunch staff 6141 · Meeting Expenses (100.00)       
Misc. Office Supplies 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (157.30)       
HR Direct /Poster Guard 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (80.75)   
LinkedIn Monthly subscription 6112 · Subscriptions/Publications (20.00)   
CBWM Christmas lunch staff 6141 · Meeting Expenses (483.24)       
Senior Account position - LinkedIn Ad 6016 · New Employee Search Costs (536.00)       
Misc. Office Supplies 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (88.90)   
Misc. Office Supplies 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (9.15)     
Senior Accountant interviews lunch- Anna Nelson, Kristi Even 6141 · Meeting Expenses (23.30)   
Misc. Office Supplies 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (65.25)   
Misc. Office Supplies 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (12.42)   
Misc. Office Supplies 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (30.30)   
Senior Account position - LinkedIn Ad 6016 · New Employee Search Costs (395.71)       
Starbucks Gift Card- Senior Accountant Candidate 6031.7 · Other Office Supplies (25.00)   

Total for Month (8,883.57)$   

Page 3 of 16Page 26



Chino Basin Watermaster
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses & Changes in Net Assets

For the Period of July 1, 2023 through January 31, 2024

TOTAL

JUDGMENT
OPTIMUM

BASIN
JUDGMENT 

ADMIN & AP OAP ONAP
GROUND
WATER GRAND

ADOPTED
BUDGET

ADMIN. MGMT. OBMP POOL POOL POOL REPLENISH. TOTALS 2023-2024
Administrative Revenues:

Administrative Assessments 5,636,711$       3,678,686$      9,315,397$      646,000$        -$    31,000$        -$    9,992,397$           9,314,915$             
Interest Revenue - 249,159 249,159       7,208          31,281        1,455          31,995        321,097      312,500      
Groundwater Replenishment -        -      -       -     -     -     349,825      349,825      -     
Mutual Agency Project Revenue 186,412        - 186,412 -     -     -     -     186,412      186,412      
Miscellaneous Income -        -      -       -     -     -     -     -     -     

Total Administrative Revenues 5,823,123     3,927,844    9,750,968    653,208      31,281        32,455        381,820      10,849,731        9,813,827   

Administrative & Project Expenditures:
Watermaster Administration 2,560,162     - 2,560,162 -     -     -     -     2,560,162   2,993,430   
Watermaster Board-Advisory Committee 156,849        - 156,849 -     -     -     -     156,849      366,923      
Optimum Basin Mgmt Administration - 518,748 518,748 -     -     -     -     518,748      1,215,309   
OBMP Project Costs - 2,183,336 2,183,336    -     -     -     -     2,183,336   5,409,723   
Pool Legal Services - - -       -     73,250        10,962        - 84,212 241,578      
Pool Meeting Compensation - - -       -     20,750        3,500          - 24,250 45,807        
Pool Special Projects - - -       -     9,357          -     -     9,357  -     
Pool Administration - - -       -     -     -     -     -     327,067      
Debt Service - - -       -     -     -     -     -     1,665,475   
Agricultural Expense Transfer 1 - - -       103,357      (103,357)    -     -     -     -     

Total Administrative Expenses 2,717,011     2,702,084    5,419,096    103,357      - 14,462 - 5,536,915 12,265,312        

Net Ordinary Income 3,106,112     1,225,760    4,331,872    549,851      31,281        17,993        381,820      5,312,816   (2,451,485)        

Other Income/(Expense)
Replenishment Water Assessments -        -      -       -     -     -     (1,920,791)        (1,920,791)        -     
Refund-Basin O&M Expenses (1,542,183)    - (1,542,183) -     -     -     -     (1,542,183)        -     
Refund-Recharge Debt Service -        -      -       -     -     -     -     -     -     

Net Other Income/(Expense) (1,542,183)    - (1,542,183) -     -     -     (1,920,791)        (3,462,973)        -     

Net Transfers To/(From) Reserves 1,563,929$       1,225,760$      2,789,689$      549,851$        31,281$          17,993$          (1,538,971)$           1,849,843$             (2,451,485)$           

Net Assets, July 1, 2023 9,768,099    41,205        1,343,226   57,841        1,715,286   12,925,657        
Net Assets, End of Period 12,557,788  591,056      1,374,507   75,834        176,316      14,775,500        

Pool Assessments Outstanding 2 (238,028)    (731,123)    -     
Pool Fund Balance 353,028$        643,384$        75,834$          

1 Fund balance transfer as agreed to in the Peace Agreement.
2 Outstanding balance of Pool Special Assessments 

POOL ADMINISTRATION & SPECIAL PROJECTS

Page 4 of 16Page 27



 Chino Basin Watermaster
Treasurer's Report

January 2024

Type
Monthly 

Yield Cost Market % Total

Cash & Investments

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) * Investment 4.01% 625,025$             620,989$             3.9%
CA CLASS Prime Fund ** Investment 5.48% 13,281,958          13,284,053$        84.3%
Bank of America Checking 1,860,282            1,860,282            11.8%
Bank of America Payroll - - 0.0%

Total Cash & Investments 15,767,265$        15,765,324$        100.0%

* The LAIF Market Value factor is updated quarterly in September, December, March, and June.

** The CLASS Prime Fund Net Asset Value factor is updated monthly.

Certification

Edgar Tellez Foster, Acting General Manager

Prepared By:
Daniela Uriarte, Senior Accountant

I certify that (1) all investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with Chino Basin 
Watermaster's Investment Policy, and (2) Funds on hand are sufficient to meet all foreseen and planned administrative and 
project expenditures for the next six months.

Page 5 of 16Page 28



 Chino Basin Watermaster
Budget to Actual

For the Period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024

 January
 2024 

 YTD
Actual 

 FY 24
Adopted
Budget 

 $
Over / (Under)

Budget 

% of 
Budget

1 Administration Revenue
2 Local Agency Subsidies -$  186,412$           186,412$              -$  100%
3 Admin Assessments-Appropriative Pool - 9,669,482 8,886,165             783,317             109%
4 Admin Assessments-Non-Ag Pool - 322,914 428,750 (105,836)           75%
5 Total Administration Revenue - 10,178,809 9,501,327             677,482             107%

6 Other Revenue
7 Appropriative Pool-Replenishment - 335,840 - 335,840 N/A
8 Non-Ag Pool-Replenishment - 13,985 - 13,985 N/A
9 Interest Income 132,205             321,097 312,500 8,597 103%
10 Miscellaneous Income - - - - N/A
11 Total Other Revenue 132,205             670,922             312,500 358,422             215%

12 Total Revenue 132,205             10,849,731        9,813,827             1,035,904          111%

13 Judgment Administration Expense
14 Judgment Administration 29,907               229,148             721,698 (492,550)           32%
15 Admin. Salary/Benefit Costs 420,160             1,317,142          1,413,610             (96,468)             93%
16 Office Building Expense 15,197               124,232             208,510 (84,278)             60%
17 Office Supplies & Equip. 1,790 32,506               49,438 (16,932)             66%
18 Postage & Printing Costs 2,304 15,424               33,806 (18,382)             46%
19 Information Services 20,898               86,634               199,818 (113,184)           43%
20 Contract Services 16,056               82,992               60,200 22,792               138%
21 Watermaster Legal Services 157,383             603,562             565,964 37,598               107%
22 Insurance - 46,256 50,468 (4,212)               92%
23 Dues and Subscriptions 6,975 35,572               40,027 (4,455)               89%
24 Watermaster Administrative Expenses 1,710 5,957 7,550 (1,593)               79%
25 Field Supplies - 583 3,200 (2,617)               18%
26 Travel & Transportation 2,889 14,940               29,570 (14,630)             51%
27 Training, Conferences, Seminars 9,946 35,176               50,400 (15,224)             70%
28 Advisory Committee Expenses 1,848 27,827               105,823 (77,996)             26%
29 Watermaster Board Expenses 18,869               129,023             261,100 (132,077)           49%
30 ONAP - WM & Administration 2,104 16,682               106,194 (89,512)             16%
31 OAP - WM & Administration 3,426 24,141               108,700 (84,559)             22%
32 Appropriative Pool- WM & Administration 4,798 43,404               112,173 (68,769)             39%
33 Allocated G&A Expenditures (20,298)              (154,188)            (440,829)               286,641             35%
34 Total Judgment Administration Expense 695,963             2,717,011          3,687,420             (970,408)           74%

35 Optimum Basin Management Plan (OBMP)
36 Optimum Basin Management Plan 46,524               518,748             1,215,309             (696,562)           43%
37 Groundwater Level Monitoring 30,532               226,006             459,625 (233,619)           49%
38 Program Element (PE)2- Comp Recharge 138,136             850,698             1,672,577             (821,879)           51%
39 PE3&5-Water Supply/Desalte 8,066 18,023               105,677 (87,654)             17%
40 PE4- Management Plan 21,023               191,280             817,643 (626,362)           23%
41 PE6&7-CoopEfforts/SaltMgmt 49,503               326,245             1,117,623             (791,378)           29%
42 PE8&9-StorageMgmt/Conj Use 47,338               416,896             795,750 (378,853)           52%
43 Recharge Improvements - - 1,665,475             (1,665,475)        0%
44 Administration Expenses Allocated-OBMP 6,851 68,849               222,160 (153,312)           31%
45 Administration Expenses Allocated-PE 1-9 13,446               85,340               218,669 (133,330)           39%
46 Total OBMP Expense 361,419             2,702,084          8,290,508             (5,588,423)        33%

47 Pool Administration
48 Appropriative Pool-Legal Services - - - - N/A
49 OAP Legal & Technical Services 8,550 73,250               186,612 (113,362)           39%
50 OAP Meeting Compensation 5,500 20,750               40,932 (20,182)             51%
51 OAP Expense - Special Projects 9,357 9,357 - 9,357 N/A
52 ONAP - Legal Services - 10,962 54,966 (44,004) 20%
52 ONAP - Meeting Compensation 1,125 3,500 4,875 (1,375) 72%
53 Total Pool Administration 24,532               117,819             287,384 (169,565)           41%

55 Other Expense
56 Groundwater Replenishment - 1,920,791 - 1,920,791 N/A
57 Reserve Refunds - 1,542,183 - 1,542,183 N/A
58 Total Other Expense - 3,462,973 - 3,462,973 N/A

59 Total Expenses 1,081,913          8,999,888          12,265,312           (3,265,424)        73%

60 Increase / (Decrease) to Reserves (949,708)$          1,849,843$        (2,451,485)$          4,301,328$        

Page 6 of 16Page 29



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

Budget to Actual 
The Budget to Actual report summarizes the operating and non-operating revenues and expenses of Chino Basin 
Watermaster for the fiscal year-to-date (YTD). Columns are included for current monthly and YTD activity shown 
comparatively to the FY 24 adopted budget. The final two columns indicate the amount over or under budget, and the 
YTD percentage of total budget used. As of January 31st, the target budget percentage is generally 58%.  

Revenues 
Lines 1-5 Administration Revenue – Includes local agency subsidies and administrative assessment for the appropriative, 
agricultural and non-agricultural pools.  Below is a summary of notable account variances at month end: 

 Line 2 Local Agency Subsidies is at 100% of budget due to annual administrative assessment received from
Metropolitan Water District.

 Lines 3-4 Administrative Assessments for the Agricultural and Non-Agricultural pools include annual assessment
invoices issued in November of each year, as well as special assessments issued at the direction of the respective
pools. The Appropriative pool line is over budget due to changes in actual versus projected production, and special
assessments issued.

Lines 6-11 Other Revenue – Includes pool replenishment assessments, interest income and other miscellaneous income. 

Expenses 
Lines 13-34 Judgment Administration Expense – Includes Watermaster general administrative expenses, contract 
services, insurance, office and other administrative expenses. Below is a summary of notable account variances at month 
end: 

 Line 15 Admin Salary/Benefit Costs includes wages and benefits for Watermaster administrative staff. YTD is at
93% of budget due to vacation, sick time, and severance payouts.

 Line 17 Office Supplies and Equipment includes office supplies, minor office furniture, and other miscellaneous
office items including bank fees. YTD is at 66% due to the timing of office furniture purchases and timing of
shredding services.

 Line 20 Contract Services includes outside services for the annual audit report, HR consulting, court filings, and
accounting consulting. YTD is over budget due to increased consulting services not anticipated in the budget.
These increased consulting service costs should be offset by savings in administrative salaries and benefits.

 Line 22 Insurance includes general liability insurance, directors’ and officers’ liability, municipalities coverage,
environmental pollution liability and other various insurance policies. YTD is at 92% of budget due to the timing
of annual renewals for the directors’ and officers’ policy and municipalities coverage.

 Line 23 Dues and Subscriptions is at 89% of budget due to the timing of annual dues for ACWA, SHRM, and CA
Groundwater Coalition.

 Line 24 Watermaster Administrative Expenses include meeting expenses and supplies for admin, committee, and
other meetings. YTD is at 79% due to increased meeting activity.

 Line 27 Training, Conferences, Seminars is at 70% of budget due to the timing of conferences and increased
employee training expenses not anticipated in the budget.

Page 7 of 16Page 30



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

Lines 35-46 Optimum Basin Management Plan (OBMP) Expense – Includes legal, engineering, groundwater level 
monitoring, allocated administrative expenses, and other expenses. 

Lines 47-53 Pool Administration Expenses – Includes expense activity relating to pool specific fund balances. These 
include legal services for each pool, Ag pool meeting compensation, and Ag pool special projects.  

Lines 55-58 Other Expense – Includes groundwater replenishment, and various refunds as appropriate. YTD activity 
includes refunds for prior year recharge basin O&M expenses and excess reserves.  

Page 8 of 16Page 31



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

Pool Services Fund Accounting

Each Pool has a fund account created to pay their own legal service invoices.  The legal services invoices are funded and 
paid using the fund accounts (8467 for the Overlying Agricultural Pool (OAP), 8567 for the Overlying Non-Agricultural Pool 
(ONAP), and 8367 for the Appropriate Pool (AP)).  Along with the legal services fund account for the OAP (8467), the OAP 
also has two other fund accounts for Ag Pool Meeting Attendance expenses (8470), and Special Projects expenses (8471).  
The ONAP also have a meeting compensation fund account (8511) Additionally, the OAP has a reserve fund that is held by 
Watermaster and spent at the direction of the OAP. The AP also has an account 8368 relating to the Tom Harder contract.  
These fund accounts are replenished at the direction of each Pool, and the legal service invoices are approved by the Pool 
leadership and when paid by Watermaster, are deducted from the existing fund account balances.  If the fund account for 
any pool reaches zero, no further payments can be paid from the fund and a replenishment action must be initiated by 
the pool.   

The following tables detail the fund balance accounts as of January 31, 2024 (continued next page): 

Fund Balance For Non-Agricultural Pool 
Account 8567 - Legal Services

Fund Balance For Appropriative Pool
Account 8367 - Legal Services

Beginning Balance July 1, 2023: 56,965.90$    Beginning Balance July 1, 2023: (12,415.36)$     
Additions: Additions:
Interest Earnings 1,454.95  Interest Earnings 7,207.92  

Payments received on  ONAP Assessment invoices issued 
11/18/23 25,000.00  Payments received on AP Pool Assessment invoices issued 10/30/23 178,107.17  
  Subtotal Additions: 26,454.95    Subtotal Additions: 185,315.09  

Reductions: Reductions:
Invoices paid July 2023 - January 2024 (10,962.00)  Invoices paid July 2023 - January 2024 -  
Budget Transfers (2,000.00)    Subtotal Reductions: -  
  Subtotal Reductions: (12,962.00)  

Available Fund Balance as of January 31, 2024 172,899.73$       
Available Fund Balance as of January 31, 2024 70,458.85$    

Fund Balance For Non-Agricultural Pool 
Account 8511 - Meeting Compensation

Fund Balance For Appropriative Pool
Account 8368 - Tom Harder Contract

Beginning Balance July 1, 2020: 875.00$    Beginning Balance July 1, 2023: -$    
Additions: Additions:
Payments received on  ONAP Assessment invoices issued 
11/18/23 6,000.00$    
Budget Transfers 2,000.00  Interest Earnings -  
  Subtotal Additions: 8,000.00  Payments received on AP Pool Assessment invoices issued 10/30/23 20,577.61  

  Subtotal Additions: 20,577.61  
Reductions:
Compensation paid July 2023 - January 2024 (3,500.00)  Reductions:
  Subtotal Reductions: (3,500.00)  Invoices paid July 2023 - January 2024 -  

  Subtotal Reductions: -  
Available Fund Balance as of January 31, 2024 5,375.00$    Available Fund Balance as of January 31, 2024 20,577.61$    

Page 9 of 16Page 32



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

Pool Services Fund Accounting – Cont. 
Fund Balance for Agricultural Pool  
Account 8467 - Legal Services

Agricultural Pool Reserve Funds 
As shown on the Combining Schedules

Beginning Balance July 1, 2023: 41,675.63$    Beginning Balance July 1, 2023: 612,103.32$     
Additions: Additions:
Payments received on AP Pool Assessment invoices issued 
10/30/23 144,935.99  YTD Interest earned on Ag Pool Funds FY 24 31,280.73  
  Total Additions: 144,935.99  Transfer of Funds from AP to Special Fund for Legal Service Invoices 73,250.00  

  Total Additions: 104,530.73  

Reductions: Reductions:
Invoices paid July 2023 - January 2024 (73,250.00)  Legal service invoices paid July 2023 - January 2024 (73,250.00)  
  Subtotal Reductions: (73,250.00)  Total Reductions (73,250.00)  

Available Fund Balance as of January 31, 2024 113,361.62$    Agricultural Pool Reserve Funds Balance as of Jan. 31, 2024: 643,384.05$    

Fund Balance For Agricultural Pool        
Account 8470 - Meeting Compensation

Fund Balance For Agricultural Pool  
Account 8471 - Special Projects

Beginning Balance July 1, 2023: 950.98$    Beginning Balance July 1, 2023: 10,993.67$    
Additions: Additions:
Payments received on AP Pool Assessment invoices issued 
10/30/23 28,987.20  Payments received on AP Pool Assessment invoices issued 10/30/23 35,364.38  
Budget Transfers1 10,993.67  Subtotal Additions: 35,364.38  
Subtotal Additions: 39,980.87  

Reductions:
Reductions: Invoices paid July 2023 - January 2024 (9,357.00)  
Compensation paid July 2023 - January 2024 (20,750.00)  Budget Transfers1 (10,993.67)  
Subtotal Reductions: (20,750.00)  Subtotal Reductions: (20,350.67)  

Available Fund Balance as of January 31, 2024 20,181.85$    Available Fund Balance as of January 31, 2024 26,007.38$    

1Per action taken at September pool committee meeting. 1Per action taken at September pool committee meeting.

Page 10 of 16Page 33



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

Watermaster Salary Expenses
The following table details the Year-To-Date (YTD) Actual Watermaster burdened salary costs compared to the FY 24 
adopted budget. The “$ Over Budget” and the “% of Budget” columns are a comparison of the YTD actual to the annual 
budget. As of January 31st, the target budget percentage is generally 58%. 

Year to Date FY 23-24 $ Over / % of
Actual Budget (Under) Budget Budget

WM Salary Expense
5901.1 · Judgment Admin - Doc. Review 25,889  82,794  (56,905)  31.3%
5901.3 · Judgment Admin - Field Work 2,314  7,760  (5,446)  29.8%
5901.5 · Judgment Admin - General 44,882  60,129  (15,247)  74.6%
5901.7 · Judgment Admin - Meeting 6,856  2,633  4,223  260.4%
5901.9 · Judgment Admin - Reporting 1,324  31,033  (29,709)  4.3%
5910 · Judgment Admin - Court Coord./Attendance 8,774       19,098  (10,324)  45.9%
5911 · Judgment Admin - Exhibit G 1,347  2,370  (1,023)  56.8%
5921 · Judgment Admin - Production Monitoring 2,892       11,322  (8,430)  25.5%
5931 · Judgment Admin - Recharge Applications -                    4,634 (4,634)  0.0%
5941 · Judgment Admin - Reporting 530  1,316  (786) 40.3%
5951 · Judgment Admin - Rules & Regs -                    12,726 (12,726)  0.0%
5961 · Judgment Admin - Safe Yield 612  26,330  (25,718)  2.3%
5971 · Judgment Admin - Storage Agreements 1,714  4,739  (3,025)  36.2%
5981 · Judgment Admin - Water Accounting/Database 67,060              109,793  (42,733)  61.1%
5991 · Judgment Admin - Water Transactions 2,693  8,688  (5,995)  31.0%
6011.11 · WM Staff - Overtime 7,856  15,000  (7,144)  52.4%
6011.4 · 457(f) NQDC Plan 18,494  55,467  (36,973)  33.3%
6011.10 · Admin - Accounting 111,048  367,685  (256,637)  30.2%
6011.15 · Admin - Building Admin 2,477  18,359  (15,882)  13.5%
6011.20 · Admin - Conference/Seminars 17,870  57,083  (39,213)  31.3%
6011.25 · Admin - Document Review 659  6,846  (6,187)  9.6%
6011.50 · Admin - General 294,096  569,850  (275,754)  51.6%
6011.60 · Admin - HR 67,262  43,489  23,773  154.7%
6011.70 · Admin - IT 30,092  53,975  (23,883)  55.8%
6011.80 · Admin - Meeting 23,811  90,440  (66,629)  26.3%
6011.90 · Admin - Team Building 5,758  41,304  (35,546)  13.9%
6011.95 · Admin - Training (Give/Receive) 10,030  34,312  (24,282)  29.2%
6017· Temporary Services 15,669  24,000  (8,331)  65.3%
6201 · Advisory Committee 20,059  55,149  (35,090)  36.4%
6301 · Watermaster Board 43,605  61,818  (18,213)  70.5%
8301 · Appropriative Pool 23,746  53,761  (30,015)  44.2%
8401 · Agricultural Pool 6,922  51,549  (44,627)  13.4%
8501 · Non-Agricultural Pool 4,418  50,443  (46,025)  8.8%
6901.1 · OBMP - Document Review 25,112  89,136  (64,024)  28.2%
6901.3 · OBMP - Field Work 643  7,003  (6,360)  9.2%
6901.5 · OBMP - General 56,130  124,049  (67,919)  45.2%
6901.7 · OBMP - Meeting 16,052  57,589  (41,537)  27.9%
6901.9 · OBMP - Reporting 3,362  2,370  992  141.8%
7104.1 · PE1 - Monitoring Program 90,383  171,515  (81,132)  52.7%
7201 · PE2 - Comprehensive Recharge 28,941  57,925  (28,984)  50.0%
7301 · PE3&5 - Water Supply/Desalter -                    4,791 (4,791)  0.0%
7301.1 · PE5 - Reg. Supply Water Prgm. -                    2,633 (2,633)  0.0%
7401 · PE4 - MZ1 Subsidence Mgmt. Plan 802  13,055  (12,253)  6.1%
7501 · PE6 - Coop. Programs/Salt Mgmt. 3,140  8,027  (4,887)  39.1%
7501.1 · PE 7 - Salt Nutrient Mgmt. Plan 459     6,582  (6,123)  7.0%
7601 · PE8&9 - Storage Mgmt./Recovery 2,032  11,217  (9,185)  18.1%

Subtotal WM Staff Costs 1,097,816   2,591,787  (1,493,971)  42%
60184.1 · Administrative Leave 15,428  6,799  8,629  226.9%
60185 · Vacation 143,031  119,130  23,901  120.1%
60185.1 · Comp Time 1,194  - 1,194 100.0%
60186 · Sick Leave 10,112  83,123  (73,011) 12.2%
60187 · Holidays -  -  -  0.0%

Subtotal WM Paid Leaves 169,764   209,052  (39,288)  81%
Total WM Salary Costs 1,267,581  2,800,839  (1,533,258)  45.3%

Page 11 of 16Page 34



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

Engineering 
The following table details the Year-To-Date (YTD) Actual Engineering costs compared to the FY 24 adopted budget. The 
“$ Over Budget” and the “% of Budget” columns are a comparison of the YTD actual to the annual budget. As of January 
31st, the target budget percentage is generally 58%. 

Year to Date FY 23-24 $ Over /
Actual Budget (Under) Budget

Engineering Services Costs
5901.8 · Judgment Admin - Meetings-Engineering Services -$   45,097$   (45,097)$    0.0%
5906.1 · Judgment Admin - Watermaster Model Update - 41,235 (41,235)  0.0%
5906.71 · Judgment Admin - Data Requests-CBWM Staff 22,601  126,204 (103,604)  17.9%
5906.72 · Judgment Admin - Data Requests-Non-CBWM Staff 3,402  42,832 (39,430)  7.9%
5925 · Judgment Admin - Ag Production & Estimation 15,960  34,376 (18,417)  46.4%
5935 · Judgment Admin - Mat'l Physical Injury Requests 3,131  36,072 (32,941)  8.7%
5945 · Judgment Admin - WM Annual Report Preparation 11,671  15,416 (3,745)  75.7%
5965 · Judgment Admin - Support Data Collection & Mgmt Process 5,496  36,336 (30,841)  15.1%
6206 · Advisory Committee Meetings-WY Staff 4,643  23,466 (18,823)  19.8%
6306 · Watermaster Board Meetings-WY Staff 15,877  23,466 (7,589)  67.7%
8306 · Appropriative Pool Meetings-WY Staff 14,073  23,467 (9,394)  60.0%
8406 · Agricultural Pool Meetings-WY Staff 11,695  23,466 (11,771)  49.8%
8506 · Non-Agricultural Pool Meetings-WY Staff 6,739  23,466 (16,727)  28.7%
6901.8 · OBMP - Meetings-WY Staff 32,072  45,096 (13,024)  71.1%
6901.95 · OBMP - Reporting-WY Staff 37,740  57,316 (19,576)  65.8%
6906 · OBMP Engineering Services - Other 23,609  46,992 (23,384)  50.2%
6906.26 · 2020 OBMP Update 4,508  24,016 (19,508)  18.8%
7104.3 · Grdwtr Level-Engineering 133,613  256,445 (122,832)  52.1%
7104.8 · Grdwtr Level-Contracted Services - 10,000 (10,000)  0.0%
7104.9 · Grdwtr Level-Capital Equipment - 9,915 (9,915)  0.0%
7202 · PE2-Comp Recharge-Engineering Services 3,575  29,084 (25,509)  12.3%
7202.2 · PE2-Comp Recharge-Engineering Services 25,582  202,362 (176,780)  12.6%
7208 · SB88 Specs-Compliance-50% IEUA - 54,012 (54,012)  0.0%
7210 · OBMP - 2023 RMPU 37,768  94,328 (56,561)  40.0%
7220 · Integrated Model Mtg./Tech. Review-50% IEUA - 24,618 (24,618)  0.0%
7302 · PE3&5-PBHSP Monitoring Program 16,108  69,121 (53,013)  23.3%
7303 · PE3&5-Engineering - Other 635  15,632 (14,998)  4.1%
7306 · PE3&5-Engineering - Outside Professionals 1,280  6,500 (5,220)  19.7%
7402 · PE4-Engineering 114,848  262,544 (147,696)  43.7%
7402.10 · PE4-Northwest MZ1 Area Project 49,367  271,703 (222,336)  18.2%
7403 · PE4-Eng. Services-Contracted Services-InSar 21,365  175,000 (153,635)  12.2%
7406 · PE4-Engineering Services-Outside Professionals - 76,552 (76,552)  0.0%
7408 · PE4-Engineering Services-Network Equipment 4,899  14,081 (9,182)  34.8%
7502 · PE6&7-Engineering 164,533  384,163 (219,630)  42.8%
7505 · PE6&7-Laboratory Services 30,266  49,164 (18,898)  61.6%
7508 · HC Mitigation Plan-50% IEUA (TO #6) 8,889  10,703  (1,815)  83.0%
7510 · PE6&7-IEUA Salinity Mgmt. Plan 11,365  34,631  (23,267)  32.8%
7511 · PE6&7-SAWBMP Task Force-50% IEUA 9,488  24,610  (15,122)  38.6%
7517 · Surface Water Monitoring Plan-Chino Creek - 50% IEUA 35,489  69,821  (34,332)  50.8%
7520 · Preparation of Water Quality Mgmt. Plan 56,439  157,692  (101,253)  35.8%
7610 · PE8&9-Support 2020 Mgmt. Plan 13,687  69,306  (55,618)  19.7%
7614 · PE8&9-Support Imp. Safe Yield Court Order 396,484  663,747  (267,263)  59.7%
7620 · OBMP - Evaluation of Extreme Future Planning Scenarios 4,693  51,130  (46,437)  9.2%

Total Engineering Services Costs 1,348,892$    3,755,182$   (2,401,597)$    35.9%

* West Yost and Subcontractor Engineering Budget of $2,884,956 plus Carryover Funds from FY 2022/23 of $870,226

 % of 
Budget 

Page 12 of 16Page 35



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

Legal 
The following table details the YTD Brownstein Hyatt Farber Schreck (BHFS) expenses and costs compared to the FY 24 
adopted budget. The “$ Over Budget” and the “% of Budget” columns are a comparison of the YTD actual to the annual 
budget. As of January 31st, the target budget percentage is generally 58%. 

Year to Date FY 23-24 $ Over / % of
Actual Budget (Under) Budget Budget

6070 · Watermaster Legal Services
6071 · BHFS Legal - Court Coordination 215,180$   171,260$   43,920$   125.6%
6072 · BHFS Legal - Rules & Regulations - 92,900 (92,900)  0.0%
6073 · BHFS Legal - Personnel Matters 189,260  10,820 178,440  1749.2%
6074 · BHFS Legal - Interagency Issues - 43,704 (43,704)  0.0%
6077 · BHFS Legal - Party Status Maintenance 1,205  13,730 (12,525)  8.8%
6078 · BHFS Legal - Miscellaneous (Note 1) 127,498  233,550 (106,052)  54.6%

Total 6070 · Watermaster Legal Services 533,143  565,964  (32,821)  94.2%

6275 · BHFS Legal - Advisory Committee 3,125  26,708  (23,583)  11.7%
6375 · BHFS Legal - Board Meeting 45,148  85,272  (40,124)  52.9%
6375.1 · BHFS Legal - Board Workshop(s) - 18,499 (18,499)  0.0%
8375 · BHFS Legal - Appropriative Pool 5,525  33,385 (27,860)  16.5%
8475 · BHFS Legal - Agricultural Pool 5,525  33,385 (27,860)  16.5%
8575 · BHFS Legal - Non-Ag Pool 5,525  33,385 (27,860)  16.5%

Total BHFS Legal Services 64,847  230,634  (165,787)  28.1%

6907.3 · WM Legal Counsel
6907.31 · Archibald South Plume - 12,085 (12,085)  0.0%
6907.32 · Chino Airport Plume 720  12,085  (11,365)  6.0%
6907.33 · Desalter/Hydraulic Control 1,358  37,200  (35,842)  3.7%
6907.34 · Santa Ana River Water Rights 311  20,595  (20,285)  1.5%
6907.36 · Santa Ana River Habitat - 30,090 (30,090)  0.0%
6907.38 · Reg. Water Quality Cntrl Board 725  30,090  (29,366)  2.4%
6907.39 · Recharge Master Plan 34,154  30,495  3,659  112.0%
6907.40 · Storage Agreements - 16,960 (16,960)  0.0%
6907.41 · Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability - 9,900 (9,900)  0.0%
6907.44 · SGMA Compliance - 9,900 (9,900)  0.0%
6907.45 · OBMP Update 159,898  172,880 (12,982)  92.5%
6907.47 · 2020 Safe Yield Reset 12,959  33,920 (20,961)  38.2%
6907.48 · Ely Basin Investigation - 126,040 (126,040)  0.0%
6907.90 · WM Legal Counsel - Unanticipated - 37,395 (37,395)  0.0%

Total 6907 · WM Legal Counsel 210,123  579,635  (369,512)  36.3%

Total Brownstein, Hyatt, Farber, Schreck Costs 808,113$   1,376,233$   (568,120)$   58.7%

Page 13 of 16Page 36



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

Optimum Basin Management Plan (OBMP) 
The following table details the Year-To-Date (YTD) Actual OBMP costs compared to the FY 24 adopted budget. The “$ Over 
Budget” and the “% of Budget” columns are a comparison of the YTD actual to the annual budget. As of January 31st, the 
target budget percentage is generally 58%. 

Year to Date FY 23-24 $ Over / % of
Actual Budget (Under) Budget Budget

6900 · Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan
6901.1 · OBMP - Document Review-WM Staff 25,112$    89,136$    (64,024)$    28.2%
6901.3 · OBMP - Field Work-WM Staff 643  7,003  (6,360)  9.2%
6901.5 · OBMP - General-WM Staff 56,130  124,049  (67,919)  45.2%
6901.7 · OBMP - Meeting-WM Staff 16,052  57,589  (41,537)  27.9%
6901.8 · OBMP - Meeting-West Yost 32,072  45,096  (13,024)  71.1%
6901.9 · OBMP - Reporting-WM Staff 3,362  2,370  992  141.8%
6901.95 · OBMP - Reporting-West Yost 37,740  57,316  (19,576)  65.8%

Total 6901 · OBMP WM and West Yost Staff 171,110  382,559   (211,449)  44.7%

6903 · OBMP - SAWPA
6903 · OBMP - SAWPA Group 24,071  24,071  0  100.0%

Total 6903 · OBMP - SAWPA 24,071  24,071   0  100.0%

6906 · OBMP Engineering Services
6906.1 · OBMP - Watermaster Model Update 18,889  41,235  (22,346)  45.8%
6906.15 · Integrated Model Mtgs. - IEUA Costs -  -  -  0.0%
6906.21 · State of the Basin Report -  -  -  0.0%
6906.26 · 2020 OBMP Update 4,508  24,016  (19,508)  18.8%
6906.71 · OBMP - Data Requests - CBWM Staff -  -  -  0.0%
6906.72 · OBMP - Data Requests - Non CBWM -  -  -  0.0%
6906 · OBMP Engineering Services - Other 23,609  46,992  (23,384)  50.2%

Total 6906 · OBMP Engineering Services 47,006  112,243   (65,237)  41.9%

6907 · OBMP Legal Fees
6907.31 · Archibald South Plume - 12,085 (12,085)  0.0%
6907.32 · Chino Airport Plume 720  12,085  (11,365)  6.0%
6907.33 · Desalter/Hydraulic Control 1,358  37,200  (35,842)  3.7%
6907.34 · Santa Ana River Water Rights 311  20,595  (20,285)  1.5%
6907.36 · Santa Ana River Habitat - 30,090 (30,090)  0.0%
6907.38 · Reg. Water Quality Cntrl Board 725  30,090  (29,366)  2.4%
6907.39 · Recharge Master Plan 34,154  30,495  3,659  112.0%
6907.40 · Storage Agreements - 16,960 (16,960)  0.0%
6907.41 · Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability - 9,900 (9,900)  0.0%
6907.44 · SGMA Compliance - 9,900 (9,900)  0.0%
6907.45 · OBMP Update 159,898  172,880 (12,982)  92.5%
6907.47 · 2020 Safe Yield Reset 12,959  33,920 (20,961)  38.2%
6907.48 · Ely Basin Investigation - 126,040 (126,040)  0.0%
6907.90 · WM Legal Counsel - Unanticipated - 37,395 (37,395)  0.0%

Total 6907 · OBMP Legal Fees 210,123  579,635   (369,512)  36.3%

6908 · OBMP Updates
6908.1 · 2020 OBMP Update-Dodson & Assoc. 63,180  107,578  (44,397)  58.7%

Total 6908 · OBMP Updates 63,180  107,578   (44,397)  58.7%

6909 · OBMP Other Expenses
6909.1 · OBMP Meetings - 1,500 (1,500)  0.0%
6909.3 · Other OBMP Expenses 3,258  2,724 534  119.6%
6909.6 · OBMP Expenses - Miscellaneous - 5,000 (5,000)  0.0%

Total 6909 · OBMP Other Expenses 3,258  9,224   (5,966)  35.3%

Total 6900 · Optimum Basin Mgmt Plan 518,748$    1,215,309$    (696,562)$    42.7%

Page 14 of 16Page 37



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

Judgment Administration 
The following table details the Year-To-Date (YTD) Actual Judgment Administration costs compared to the FY 24 adopted 
budget. The “$ Over Budget” and the “% of Budget” columns are a comparison of the YTD actual to the annual budget. As 
of January 31st, the target budget percentage is generally 58%. 

Year to Date FY 23-24 $ Over / % of
Actual Budget (Under) Budget Budget

5901 · Admin-WM Staff
5901.1 · Admin-Doc. Review-WM Staff 25,889$   82,794$  (56,905)$   31.3%
5901.3 · Admin-Field Work-WM Staff 2,314  7,760  (5,446)  29.8%
5901.5 · Admin-General-WM Staff 44,882  60,129 (15,247)  74.6%
5901.7 · Admin-Meeting-WM Staff 6,856  2,633  4,223  260.4%
5901.8 · Admin-Meeting - West Yost - 45,097 (45,097)  0.0%
5901.9 · Admin-Reporting-WM Staff 1,324  31,033 (29,709)  4.3%

Total 5901 · Admin-WM Staff 81,266 229,446  (148,180)  35.4%
5900 · Judgment Admin Other Expenses

5906.71 · Admin-Data Req-CBWM Staff 22,601  126,204 (103,604)  17.9%
5906.72 · Admin-Data Req-Non CBWM Staff 3,402  42,832 (39,430)  7.9%
5910 · Court Coordination/Attend-WM 8,774  19,098 (10,324)  45.9%
5911 · Exhibit G-WM Staff 1,347  2,370  (1,023)  56.8%
5921 · Production Monitoring-WM Staff 2,892  11,322 (8,430)  25.5%
5925 · Ag Prod & Estimation-West Yost 15,960  34,376 (18,417)  46.4%
5931 · Recharge Applications-WM Staff - 4,634 (4,634)  0.0%
5935 · Admin-Mat'l Phy Inj Requests 3,131  36,072 (32,941)  8.7%
5941 · Reporting-WM Staff 530  1,316 (786) 40.3%
5945 · WM Annual Report Prep-West Yost 11,671  15,416 (3,745)  75.7%
5951 · Rules & Regs-WM Staff - 12,726 (12,726)  0.0%
5961 · Safe Yield-WM Staff 612  26,330 (25,718)  2.3%
5965 · Support Data Collect-West Yost 5,496  36,336 (30,841)  15.1%
5971 · Storage Agreements-WM Staff 1,714  4,739  (3,025)  36.2%
5981 · Water Acct/Database-WM Staff 67,060  109,793 (42,733)  61.1%
5991 · Water Transactions-WM Staff 2,693  8,688  (5,995)  31.0%

Total 5900 · Judgment Admin Other Expenses 147,882 492,252  (344,370)  30.0%

Total 5900 · Judgment Administration 229,148$   721,698$  (492,550)$   31.8%

Page 15 of 16Page 38



Chino Basin Watermaster 
Monthly Variance Report & Supplemental Schedules 

For the period July 1, 2023 to January 31, 2024 

“Carry Over” Funding: 
During the month of July 2023, the “Carry Over” funding was calculated.  The Total “Carry Over” funding amount of 
$2,277,561.54 has been posted to the general ledger accounts.  The total amount consisted of $870,226.24 from 
Engineering Services, $816,709.78 from Capital Improvement Projects, $464,627.66 from OBMP Activities, $111,461.18 
from Pool Funding Accounts, and $14,536.68 from Administration Services.  More detailed information is provided in the 
table below.  

Description Amount Account Fiscal Year Type

Other Office Equipment - Boardroom Upgrades 10,037.93$   6038 FY 2020/21 ADMIN

Board Workshop Expenses - Misc. 4,498.75  6375.2 FY 2021/22 ADMIN

Meter Installation - New Meter Installation 175,400.00  7540 FY 2018/19 OBMP

Meter Installation - Calibration and Testing 181,650.00  7545 FY 2018/19 OBMP

2022 OBMP Update - Dodson & Asso. 107,577.66  6908.1 FY 2022/23 OBMP

Watermaster Model Update 34,206.75  5906.1 FY 2022/23 ENG

Groundwater Level Monitoring Program 2,700.00  7104.3 FY 2022/23 ENG

PE2 - Comprehensive Recharge - Eng. Services 27,943.64  7202.2 FY 2020/21 ENG

PE2 - Comprehensive Recharge - Eng. Services 18,441.85  7202.2 FY 2021/22 ENG

PE2 - Comprehensive Recharge - Eng. Services 72,788.26  7202.2 FY 2022/23 ENG

SB88-Specs-Ensure Compliance-50% IEUA 54,012.38  7208 FY 2020/21 ENG

OBMP - 2023 RMPU 60,000.00  7210 FY 2022/23 ENG

Integrated Model - Meetings - 50% IEUA Costs 24,617.63  7220 FY 2021/22 ENG

PBHSP - Monitoring, Data Analysis, Reporting 21,000.00  7302 FY 2022/23 ENG

OBMP - Engineering Services 65,208.75  7402 FY 2022/23 ENG

PE4 - Northwest MZ-1 Area Project 23,805.91  7402.1 FY 2021/22 ENG

PE4 - Northwest MZ-1 Area Project 126,194.09  7402.1 FY 2022/23 ENG

PE4/MZ-1: InSAR - Outside Pro 85,000.00  7403 FY 2022/23 ENG

Ground Level Monitoring - Capital Equipment 5,000.00  7408 FY 2022/23 ENG

PE6-7: Coop Efforts/Salt Management: 40,000.00  7502 FY 2022/23 ENG

Groundwater Quality Monitoring Program 16,194.00  7505 FY 2022/23 ENG

Hydraulic Control Mitigation Plan Update-50% IEUA 9,687.25  7508 FY 2021/22 ENG

Hydraulic Control Mitigation Plan Update-50% IEUA 1,016.00  7508 FY 2022/23 ENG

IEUA - Update Recycle Water Permit - Salinity 19,752.23  7510 FY 2021/22 ENG

PE8&9 - Support Imp. 2020 Storage Mgmt. Plan 42,657.50  7610 FY 2020/21 ENG
Support Implementation of the Safe Yield Court Order: 120,000.00  7614 FY 2022/23 ENG

Upper Santa Ana River HCP (TO #7) 15,062.88  7690.7 FY 2014/15 PROJ

Upper Santa Ana River HCP (TO #7) 5,000.00  7690.7 FY 2015/16 PROJ

Lower Day Basin RMPU (TO #2) 238,646.90  7690.8 FY 2016/17 PROJ

Jurupa Basin Berm & Trash Boom 358,000.00  7690.23 FY 2022/23 PROJ

Funds on Hold for Projects/Refund 200,000.00  7690.9 FY 2017/18 PROJ

Agricultural Pool - Legal Services 41,675.63  8467 FY 2022/23 AP

Agricultural Pool - Mtg. Attendance Compensation 950.98  8470 FY 2022/23 OAP

Agricultural Pool - Special Project Funding 10,993.67  8471 FY 2021/22 OAP

Non-Agricultural Pool - Meeting Compensation 875.00  8511 FY 2022/23 ONAP

Non-Agricultural Pool - Legal Services 56,965.90  8567 FY 2022/23 ONAP

Balance at 7/31/23 2,277,561.54$   

Carry Over Budget Detail - FY 23/24

Page 16 of 16Page 39



Watermaster’s function is to administer and enforce provisions of the Judgment and subsequent orders of the Court, 
and to develop and implement an Optimum Basin Management Program 

EDGAR TELLEZ FOSTER, PhD 
Acting General Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 14, 2024 

TO: AP/ONAP/OAP Committee Members 

SUBJECT: OBMP Semi-Annual Status Report 2023-2 (Consent Calendar Item I.C.) 

SUMMARY: 

Issue:  Pursuant to the September 28, 2000 Court Order under Periodic Reporting Requirements, 
Watermaster produces the Semi-Annual Optimum Basin Management Program (OBMP) Status 
Reports. The report for the period July to December 2023 has been drafted. 
[Discretionary Function] 

Recommendation:  Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Watermaster Board 
to adopt the Semi-Annual OBMP Status Report 2023-2, and direct staff to file a copy with the Court, 
subject to any necessary non-substantive changes.   

Financial Impact:  None. 

Future Consideration 
Appropriative Pool – March 14, 2024:  Advice and assistance. 
Non-Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024:  Advice and assistance. 
Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024:  Advice and assistance. 
Advisory Committee – March 21, 2024:  Advice and assistance. 
Watermaster Board – March 28, 2024:  Adopt and file with the Court. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTIONS: 
Appropriative Pool – March 14, 2024:  
Non-Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024:  
Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024: 
Advisory Committee – March 21, 2024: 
Watermaster Board – March 28, 2024: 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 

Tel:  909.484.3888        www.cbwm.org

Page 40



OBMP Semi-Annual Status Report 2023-2  March 14, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 
 
 

Watermaster’s function is to administer and enforce provisions of the Judgment and subsequent orders of the Court,  
and to develop and implement an Optimum Basin Management Program 

 

BACKGROUND 
 
The OBMP Semi-Annual Status Report 2023-2 covers the period from July to December 2023. The report 
describes work conducted, and the status of the nine Program Elements of the Optimum Basin 
Management Program during the six-month period. 
 
 
DISCUSSION 
 
OBMP Semi-Annual Status Report 2023-2 has been drafted (Attachment 1). Once adopted by the 
Watermaster Board, a copy of the OBMP Semi-Annual Status Report 2023-2 will be filed with the Court. 
 
 
 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

1. OBMP Semi-Annual Status Report 2023-2 

Page 41



 During this reporting period, Watermaster manually measured about 300 water levels at
about 40 private wells and 15 municipal supply wells throughout the Chino Basin; 
conducted two quarterly downloads of pressure transducers installed at about 130 
private, municipal, and monitoring wells; collected groundwater quality samples from 57 
municipal, private, and monitoring wells; and collected four surface water quality samples 
from two sites. 

 Pursuant to a monitoring and mitigation requirement of the Peace II Subsequent
Environmental Impact Report (SEIR), Watermaster, the Inland Empire Utilities Agency 
(IEUA), and the Orange County Water District (OCWD) continued to implement the Prado 
Basin Habitat Sustainability Program (PBHSP).  During this reporting period, Watermaster 
conducted two quarterly downloads of pressure transducers at the 18 PBHSP monitoring 
wells, collected water quality parameters at four sites quarterly, and collected and 
reviewed riparian habitat monitoring data. 

 Pursuant to the Chino Basin Subsidence Management Plan, Watermaster continued to
implement the Ground-Level Monitoring Program for the MZ-1 and Northwest MZ-1 
areas. During this reporting period, Watermaster: collected, processed, and checked 
groundwater level data and aquifer-system deformation data from the Ayala Park, Chino 
Creek, and Pomona extensometer facilities; groundwater production data from wells in 
Northwest MZ-1; and continued high-resolution water-level monitoring at about 30 wells within the MZ-1 Managed Area and the 
Areas of Subsidence Concern. Watermaster also published a draft technical memorandum, 1D Model Simulation of Subsidence in 
Northwest MZ-1— Subsidence Management Alternative #1, which included a recommend “Northwest MZ-1 Guidance Level”  to 
slow down  rates of compaction and subsidence in Northwest MZ-1 area.  

 Watermaster and the IEUA are continuing to implement the 2013 Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update
(2013 RMPU) pursuant to the October 2013 Court Order authorizing its implementation. During this reporting period, construction 
of the Wineville/Jurupa/RP3 and Lower Day projects continued. The agreements for the Montclair Basins were obtained in 
preparation for the start of construction in 2024. 

 During this reporting period, Watermaster and the IEUA recharged a total of 48,313 acre-feet of water: 8,408 acre-feet of
stormwater and 4,245 acre-feet of recycled water, and 35,660 acre-feet of imported water. 

 Watermaster and IEUA are continuing to implement the Maximum Benefit Salt and Nutrient Management Plan, which includes
conducting groundwater and surface water monitoring, maintaining Hydraulic Control of the basin, operating the Chino Desalters 
at 40,000 acre-feet per year of pumping, managing recycled water quality and recharge, and participating in the 
re-computation of ambient water quality with the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority and Basin Monitoring Program Task 
Force. During this reporting period, Watermaster and the IEUA collaborated with the Santa Ana Regional Water Quality Control 
Board (Santa Ana Water Board) staff to finalize the Updated Plan for Mitigation of Temporary Loss of Hydraulic Control in the 
Chino Basin, which updated the definition of minimum pumping at the Chino Creek Well Field to maintain Hydraulic Control, 
provided definition of operational flexibility for desalter operation, and updated protocol for mitigation of temporary loss of 
Hydraulic Control. Additionally, Watermaster and the IEUA continued to provide support to the Santa Ana Water Board staff on 
the Basin Plan amendment to update the commitments and requirements for the Maximum Benefit Salt and Nutrient Management 
Plan.  

 Watermaster continued work to implement elements of the 2017 Court Order. During this reporting period, this work included
initiating the annual data collection and evaluation process covering the period through fiscal year 2022/23 and continuing the 
process to reevaluate the Safe Yield of the Chino Basin for the period of fiscal year 2021 through 2030. 

 During the reporting period, Watermaster and its stakeholders convened the Water Quality Committee and the Storage and
Recovery Master Plan Committee to initiate two planning efforts that were identified in the 2020 OBMP Update. 

Highlighted Activities 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

C H I N O  B A S I N  W A T E R M A S T E R

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Staff  Status Report 2023-2: July to December 2023 

Important Court Hearings 
and Orders 
 AUGUST 4, 2023:

HEARING AND ORDER GRANTING 
MOTION FOR SITE VISIT BY THE COURT; 
HEARING AND ORDER DENYING CITY OF 
ONTARIO’S MOTION CHALLENGING 
WATERMASTER’S NOVEMBER 17, 2022 
ACTIONS/DECISION TO APPROVE THE 
FY 2022/2023 ASSESSMENT 
PACKAGE 

 DECEMBER 1, 2023:
HEARING AND ORDER GRANTING 
MOTION FOR COURT TO RECEIVE AND 
FILE WATERMASTER SEMI-ANNUAL 
OBMP STATUS REPORT 2023-1; 
HEARING AND ORDER APPROVING 
WATERMASTER’S 2023 RECHARGE 
MASTER PLAN UPDATE 

ATTACHMENT 1

Page 42



Program Element 1: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Monitoring Program 

Fundamental to the implementation of the OBMP Program Elements are the monitoring and data collection efforts performed in 
accordance with Program Element 1, including monitoring basin hydrology, production, recharge, groundwater levels, groundwater 
quality, and ground-level movement. Various monitoring programs have and will continue to be refined over time to satisfy the 
evolving needs of Watermaster and the IEUA, such as new regulatory requirements and improved data coverage. Monitoring is 
performed by basin pumpers, Watermaster staff, and other cooperating entities as follows. 

Groundwater Level Monitoring 

Watermaster’s basin-wide groundwater-level monitoring program supports the periodic reassessment of Safe Yield, the monitoring 
and management of ground-level movement, the impact analysis of desalter pumping on private wells, the impact analysis of the 
implementation of the Peace II Agreement on groundwater levels and riparian vegetation in the Prado Basin, the triennial 
re-computation of ambient water quality mandated by the Water Quality Control Plan for the Santa Ana River Basin (Basin Plan), 
and the assessment of Hydraulic Control—a maximum-benefit commitment in the Basin Plan.  The data are also used to update and 
recalibrate Watermaster’s computer-simulated groundwater flow model in order to assess groundwater flow directions, to compute 
storage changes, to support interpretations of water quality data, and to identify areas of the basin where recharge and discharge 
are not in balance. 

The current groundwater-level monitoring program is comprised of approximately 1,150 wells. At about 960 of these wells, 
groundwater levels are measured by well owners, which include municipal water agencies, the California Department of Toxic 
Substances Control (DTSC), the Counties, and various private consulting firms. Watermaster collects these groundwater level data 
semi-annually from the well owners.  At the remaining 190 wells, groundwater levels are measured monthly by Watermaster staff 
using manual methods or by pressure transducers that record data on a 15-minute interval. These wells are mainly Agricultural Pool 
wells or dedicated monitoring wells located south of the 60 freeway. 

All groundwater-level data are checked and uploaded to a centralized database management system that can be accessed online 
through HydroDaVESM. During this reporting period, Watermaster measured approximately 300 groundwater levels at about 40 
private wells and 15 municipal supply wells throughout the Chino Basin and conducted two quarterly downloads of 130 pressure 
transducers installed in private, municipal, and monitoring wells. Additionally, 
Watermaster compiled all available groundwater-level data from well 
owners in the basin for the April 2023 to October 2023 period.  

Groundwater Quality Monitoring 

Watermaster initiated a comprehensive groundwater-quality monitoring 
program in which the obtained data may be used for: the biennial Chino 
Basin OBMP State of the Basin report, the triennial re-computation of ambient 
water quality, the demonstration of Hydraulic Control, monitoring of nonpoint-
source groundwater contaminations and plumes associated with point-source 
contamination, and assessing the overall health of the groundwater basin. 
Groundwater-quality data are also used in conjunction with numerical models 
to assist Watermaster and other parties in evaluating proposed salinity 
management and groundwater remediation strategies. The details of the 
groundwater-quality monitoring programs as of fiscal year 2023/24 are 
described below. 

Chino Basin Data Collection (CBDC). Watermaster routinely and proactively 
collects groundwater-quality data from well owners including municipal and 
governmental agencies. Groundwater quality data are also obtained from 
special studies and monitoring required by orders of the Santa Ana Regional 
Water Quality Control Board (Santa Ana Water Board)—such as for landfills 
and other groundwater quality investigations, the DTSC, the US Geological 
Survey (USGS), and others. These data are collected semi-annually from well 
owners and monitoring entities. Data are collected for approximately 860 
wells as part of the CBDC program. During this reporting period, 
Watermaster compiled data collected for the CBDC program for the July to 
December 2023 period.  

Page 2 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

WM Staff Taking a Water Quality Sample to Test for VOCs 

Page 43



Program Element 1: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Monitoring Program (Continued) 

Watermaster Field Groundwater Quality Monitoring Programs. Watermaster monitors groundwater quality at privately owned 
wells and dedicated monitoring wells on a routine basis as follows: 

1. Private Wells. About 70 private wells, located predominantly in the southern portion of the basin, are sampled at 
various frequencies based on their proximity to known point-source contamination plumes. Seven wells near contaminant 
plumes are sampled annually, and the remaining 63 wells are sampled triennially. 

2. Watermaster Monitoring Wells. Watermaster collects groundwater-quality samples from a total of 49 multi-nested 
monitoring wells at 22 well sites located throughout the Chino Basin. These monitoring well sites include: nine HCMP sites 
constructed to support the demonstration of Hydraulic Control in the southern Chino Basin, nine sites constructed to 
support the PBHSP in the Prado Basin region, and three sites that fill spatial data gaps near contamination plumes in 
MZ-3. Each nested well site contains up to four wells in the borehole. Additionally, Watermaster samples one 
single-casing well in MZ-3. Currently, the HCMP and MZ-3 wells are sampled annually, and the PBHSP wells are 
sampled triennially. 

3. Other Wells. Watermaster collects quarterly samples from four near-river wells to characterize the interaction of the 
Santa Ana River and groundwater. These shallow wells along the Santa Ana River consist of two former USGS National 
Water Quality Assessment Program wells (Archibald 1 and Archibald 2) and two Santa Ana River Water Company 
(SARWC) wells (active Well 9 and inactive Well 10).  

During this reporting period, Watermaster collected groundwater quality samples from three near river wells that are sampled 
quarterly; the SARWC well 10 was unable to be sampled because it is an old well that appears to be filling in and can no longer be 
monitored. Well SARWC 10 is a recently converted monitoring well to replace well SARWC 11 that was lost in 2022. Also during this 
reporting period, Watermaster collected groundwater quality samples from: 11 MZ3 monitoring wells, 21 HCMP monitoring wells, 
and 22 private wells. The samples were sent to Clinical  Laboratories for analysis. All groundwater quality data are checked by 
Watermaster staff and uploaded to a centralized database management system that can be accessed online through HydroDaVESM.  

Groundwater Production Monitoring 

As of the end of this reporting period, there were a total of 432 producing wells, 233 of which were for agricultural uses. The number 
of agricultural wells has been decreasing in recent years due to urbanization and development. Many of the remaining active 
agricultural production wells are metered, and Watermaster reads the meters on a quarterly basis. Meter reads and production data 
are then entered into Watermaster's relational database, which can be accessed online through HydroDaVESM. 

Surface Water Monitoring in the Santa Ana River 

Watermaster collects grab water quality samples at two sites along the Santa Ana River (Santa Ana River at River Road and Santa 
Ana River at Etiwanda) on a quarterly basis. Sample data from these surface water sites and from the near-river wells are used to 
characterize the interaction between the Santa Ana River and nearby groundwater. During this reporting period, Watermaster 
collected four surface water-quality samples from the two surface water sites.  

Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Program (PBHSP) 

Mitigation Measure 4.4-3 from the Peace II SEIR requires that Watermaster and the IEUA, in collaboration with the OCWD, form a 
committee, the Prado Basin Habitat Sustainability Committee (PBHSC), to develop and implement an Adaptive Management Plan for 
the PBHSP.  The PBHSC is open to all interested participants, including the Watermaster Parties, IEUA member agencies, the OCWD, 
and other interested stakeholders. The objective of the PBHSP is to ensure that riparian habitat in the Prado Basin is not adversely 
impacted by the implementation of Peace II activities.  Currently, the PBHSP consists of a monitoring program and the annual reporting 
on its results.  The monitoring program includes an assessment of the riparian habitat and all factors that could potentially impact the 
riparian habitat, including those factors affected by Peace II activities such as changes in groundwater levels.  Sixteen monitoring wells 
at nine sites were constructed in 2015 to support the PBHSP.  Two existing wells are also monitored as part of the PBHSP. The PBHSC 
developed the Adaptive Management Plan of the PBHSP to describe an initial monitoring program and a process to modify the 
monitoring program and/or implement mitigation strategies, as necessary.  

During this reporting period, Watermaster performed the following tasks: 

 Conducted the groundwater monitoring program, which included quarterly downloads in September  and December 
2023 of transducers that measure groundwater levels and temperature at 8 PBHSP monitoring wells, and transducers 
that measure electrical conductivity (EC), temperature, and groundwater levels at ten PBHSP monitoring wells. 

Page 3 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 44



Program Element 1: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Monitoring Program (Continued) 

 Conducted the surface-water monitoring program at four surface water sites, which included quarterly collection of field 
parameters for EC and temperature in September and December 2023. 

 Collected and reviewed the following riparian habitat monitoring data: 

 Normalized Difference Vegetation Index (NDVI) remote sensing data collected from Landsat satellites and 
processed by the USGS for water year 2023. 

 A custom flight to collect a high-resolution air photo for 2023 of the Prado Basin area. This was cost shared with 
the OCWD.  

Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Monitoring Program 

Watermaster, the IEUA, the Chino Basin Water Conservation District, and the San Bernardino County Flood Control District jointly 
sponsor the Chino Basin Groundwater Recharge Program. This is a comprehensive water supply program to enhance water supply 
reliability and improve groundwater quality in local drinking water wells by increasing the recharge of storm, imported, and recycled 
waters. The recharge program is regulated under IEUA and Watermaster’s recycled water recharge permit― Santa Ana Water 
Board Order No. R8-2007-0039 and Monitoring and Reporting Program No. R8-2007-0039. 

Watermaster and the IEUA measure the quantity of storm, imported, and recycled water that enters recharge basins using pressure 
transducers or staff gauges. The IEUA also conducts water-quality monitoring for all required parameters in Order No. 
R8-2007-0039 for recycled water, diluent water (storm water, dry-weather flow, and imported water), and groundwater. The IEUA 
staff samples for recycled water quality data: daily and weekly for the RP-1 and RP-4 effluent; quarterly and annually at two 
recycled water locations representative of recharge quality; and weekly or monthly from lysimeters at recharge basins. Most of the 
recycled water recharge basins have alternative compliance plans for total organic carbon (TOC) and Total Nitrogen (TN) using the 
results from the recycled water samples and the application of a correction factor for soil aquifer treatment. The IEUA also collects 
samples at about 15 surface water locations for stormwater and dry-weather flows. Imported water quality data for State Water 
Project water are obtained from the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (MWDSC).  The flow and quality data is used 
to calculate: 120-month blended water quality for total dissolved solids (TDS) and nitrate of all recharge sources in each recharge 
basin to assess adequate dilution of recycled water as required by the recycled water recharge permits held with the Division of 
Drinking Water (DDW); and 5-year blended water quality for TDS and nitrate for all recharge sources in all recharge basins in the 
Chino Basin as required by the Maximum Benefit Salinity Management Plan (see the Program Element 7 update in this status report). 

The IEUA also collects quarterly and annual groundwater quality samples at a network of about 35 dedicated monitoring wells and 
production wells that are downgradient of the recharge basins.  

Monitoring Activities. During this reporting period, the IEUA performed its ongoing monitoring program to measure and record 
recharge volumes and to collect water quality samples for recycled water, diluent water, and groundwater pursuant to IEUA and 
Watermaster’s permit requirements. This included collecting approximately 110 recycled water quality samples, 4 lysimeter samples, 
5 diluent water quality samples, and 96 groundwater quality samples for analytical analyses. Daily composite water quality data 
was also collected at the RP-1 and RP-4 effluent. 

Reporting. Watermaster and the IEUA completed the following compliance reports concerning the recharge program during this 
reporting period:  

 2Q-2023 Quarterly Report, which was submitted to the Santa Ana Water Board on August 15, 2023 

 3Q-2023 Quarterly Report, which was submitted to the Santa Ana Water Board on November 15, 2023 

Ground Level Monitoring 

To address the historical occurrence of land subsidence and ground fissuring in the Chino Basin, Watermaster prepared and submitted 
a subsidence management plan (known as the MZ-1 Plan) to the Court for approval, and in November 2007, the Court ordered its 
implementation (see Program Element 4 in this report for more on MZ-1 Plan implementation). The MZ-1 Plan required several 
monitoring and mitigation measures to minimize or abate the future occurrence of land subsidence and ground fissuring. These 
measures and activities included: 

 Continuing the scope and frequency of monitoring within the so-called Managed Area that was conducted during the 
period when the MZ-1 Plan was being developed. 

Page 4 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 45



Page 5 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Program Element 1: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Monitoring Program (Continued) 

 Expanding the monitoring of the aquifer system and ground-level movement into other areas of MZ-1 and the Chino 
Basin where data indicate concern for future subsidence and ground fissuring (Areas of Subsidence Concern). 

 Monitoring of horizontal strain across the historical zone of ground fissuring. 

 Conducting additional testing and monitoring to refine the MZ-1 Guidance Criteria for subsidence management (e.g., 
the Long-Term Pumping Test). 

 Developing alternative pumping plans for the MZ-1 producers impacted by the MZ-1 Plan. 

 Constructing and testing a lower-cost cable extensometer facility at Ayala Park. 

 Evaluating and comparing ground-level surveying and Interferometric Synthetic Aperture Radar (InSAR) and 
recommending future monitoring protocols for both techniques. 

 Conducting an aquifer storage recovery (ASR) feasibility study at a City of Chino Hills production well (Well 16) within 
the MZ-1 Managed Area. 

Since the initial MZ-1 Plan was adopted in 2007, Watermaster has conducted the Ground-Level Monitoring Program (GLMP). The 
main results from the GLMP show that very little permanent land subsidence has occurred in the MZ-1 Managed Area, indicating that 
subsidence is being successfully managed in this area, but land subsidence has been occurring in Northwest MZ-1. One concern is that 
land subsidence in Northwest MZ-1 has occurred differentially across the San Jose Fault, following the same pattern of differential 
subsidence that occurred in the MZ-1 Managed Area during the time of ground fissuring. 

Based on these observations, Watermaster determined that the subsidence management plan needed to be updated to include a 
Subsidence Management Plan for Northwest MZ-1, with the long-term objective of minimizing or abating the occurrence of the 
differential land subsidence. Thus, Watermaster expanded the GLMP into Northwest MZ-1 and prepared an updated Chino Basin 
Subsidence Management Plan, which included the Work Plan to Develop a Subsidence Management Plan for Northwest MZ-1 (Work 
Plan) as an appendix.  

During this reporting period, Watermaster undertook the following Chino Basin Subsidence Management Plan activities:  

 Continued high-resolution water-level monitoring at approximately 30 wells within the MZ-1 Managed Area and within 
the Areas of Subsidence Concern. All monitoring equipment was inspected at least quarterly and was repaired and/or 
replaced as necessary. The data collected were checked and analyzed to assess the functionality of the monitoring 
equipment and for compliance with the Chino Basin Subsidence Management Plan. 

 Performed monthly routine maintenance, data collection, and verification at the Ayala Park, Chino Creek, and Pomona 
extensometer facilities. 

 Continued implementation of the Work Plan:  

 Collected, processed, and checked groundwater level and production data from wells in Northwest MZ-1 on a 
monthly basis. 

 Collected, processed, and checked groundwater level data and aquifer-system deformation data from the 
Pomona extensometer facility (PX).  

 Published a draft technical memorandum titled: 1D Model Simulation of Subsidence in Northwest MZ-1—Subsidence 
Management Alternative #1. This work was used to understand the potential future rates of subsidence in Northwest 
MZ-1 through 2050 under the pumping/recharge plans of the parties as simulated for the 2020 Safe Yield Reset. The 
recommendation from this work is that Watermaster should establish a “Northwest MZ-1 Guidance Level” of 630 
ft-amsl for hydraulic heads in Layers 3 and 5 at the PX location. This Guidance Level approximates the current and 
projected heads in Layer 1 where the current and projected rates of compaction are the lowest. The Guidance Level 
would be an aspirational Watermaster recommendation that, if achieved, would likely slow the rates of compaction and 
subsidence to more tolerable levels over time.  

 

Page 46



Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 6 

Program Element 2: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Recharge Program 

The objectives of the comprehensive recharge program include: enhancing the yield of the Chino Basin through the development and 
implementation of a Recharge Master Plan to improve, expand, and construct recharge facilities that enable the recharge of storm, 
recycled, and imported waters; ensuring a balance of recharge and discharge in the Chino Basin management zones; and ensuring 
that sufficient storm and imported waters are recharged to comply with the recycled water dilution requirements in Watermaster and 
the IEUA’s recycled water recharge permits. 

Pursuant to Program Element 2 of the OBMP, Watermaster and the IEUA partnered with the San Bernardino County Flood Control 
District and the Chino Basin Water Conservation District to construct and/or improve 18 recharge sites. This project is known as the 
Chino Basin Facilities Improvement Project (CBFIP). The average annual stormwater recharge of the CBFIP facilities is approximately 
10,000 acre-feet per year, the supplemental “wet”1 water recharge capacity is about 56,600 acre-feet per year, and the in-lieu 
supplemental water recharge capacity ranges from 17,700 to 49,900 acre-feet per year. In addition to the CBFIP facilities, the 
Monte Vista Water District (MVWD) has four aquifer storage and recovery (ASR) wells with a well injection capacity of 5,500 
acre-feet per year.  The current total supplemental water recharge capacity ranges from 90,310 to 118,310 acre-feet per year, 
which is greater than the projected supplemental water recharge capacity required by Watermaster. 

In 2008, Watermaster began preparing the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (2010 RMPU) pursuant to the December 21, 2007 
Court Order (the Peace II Agreement) to complete a Recharge Master Plan Update by July 1, 2010. In October 2010, the Court 
accepted the 2010 RMPU as satisfying the condition and ordered that certain recommendations of the 2010 RMPU be implemented. 
In November 2011, Watermaster reported its progress to the Court pursuant to the October 2010 Court Order, and in 
December 2011, the Court issued an order directing Watermaster to continue with its implementation of the 2010 RMPU per its 
October 2010 order but with a revised schedule. On December 15, 2011, the Watermaster Board moved to:  

“approve that within the next year there will be the completion of [a] Recharge Master Plan Update, there will be the 
development of an Implementation Plan to address balance issues within the Chino Basin subzones, and the development 
of a Funding Plan, as presented.” 

 

 

 

1 The modifier “wet” means actual physical water is being recharged in spreading basins as opposed to the dedication of water from 
storage or in-lieu recharge. 

Page 47



Page 7 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Program Element 2: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Recharge Program (Continued) 

This motion led to the development of an update to the 2010 RMPU, and in 2012, Watermaster staff sent out a “call for projects” to 
the Watermaster Parties, seeking their recommendations for recharge improvement projects that should be considered in the update. 
The 2013 Amendment to the 2010 Recharge Master Plan Update (2013 RMPU) outlines the recommended projects to be implemented 
by Watermaster and the IEUA and lays out the implementation and financing plans. The 2013 RMPU report was approved by the 
Watermaster Board in September 2013 and filed with the Court in October 2013. In December 2013, the Court approved the 2013 
RMPU except for Section 5, which dealt with the accounting for new recharge from Municipal Separate Stormwater Sewer Systems; 
Section 5 was later approved by the Court in April 2014. 

In September 2018, Watermaster completed the 2018 Recharge Master Plan Update (2018 RMPU) and submitted it to the Court in 
October 2018. On December 28, 2018, the Court approved the 2018 RMPU. 

In September 2023, Watermaster completed the 2023 Recharge Master Plan Update (2023 RMPU) and submitted it to the Court in 
October 2023. The Court approved the 2023 RMPU on December 6, 2023. 

2013 RMPU Implementation. Watermaster and the IEUA are continuing to carry out the October 2013 Court Order, which authorizes 
them to implement the 2013 RMPU. Construction of the San Sevaine Basin improvements was completed in September 2018 and the 
construction of the Victoria Basin improvements was completed in December 2018. During this reporting period, the construction work 
for the Wineville/Jurupa/RP3 and Lower Day projects continued. The Lower Day project is substantially complete, pending a check list 
and final systems test. IEUA finalized the required regulatory agreement with California Department of Fish and Wildlife which has 
delayed the project bidding and construction for the Montclair Basins project. The updated project completion date for Montclair 
Basins  is 2024.  

Additionally, Watermaster and the IEUA continue to collaborate in the development of projects outside of the 2013 RMPU effort that 
will increase and/or facilitate stormwater and supplemental water recharge and have jointly funded these projects, including 
monitoring upgrades and habitat conservation. During this reporting period, no projects were completed.  

The Recharge Investigation and Projects Committee met two times during this reporting period on the progress of implementing the 
2013 RMPU Projects and other recharge-related projects. 

Page 48



Page 8 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Program Element 2: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Recharge Program (Continued) 

Recharge for Dilution of Recycled Water. In fiscal year 2009/10, Watermaster and the IEUA’s recycled water recharge permit was 
amended to allow for existing underflow dilution and extended the period for calculating dilution from a running 60-month to a 
running 120-month period. Additionally, the IEUA has worked with the DDW to obtain approval to increase the allowable recycled 
water contribution (RWC) at wells to 50 percent. These permit amendments allow for increased recycled water recharge without 
having to increase the amount of imported and storm waters required for dilution.  The IEUA projects its dilution requirements as part 
of its annual reporting to the Santa Ana Water Board. Based on the latest Annual Report (May 2023), the IEUA projects that dilution 
requirements will be met through 2032 even if no imported water is available for dilution. 

Recharge Activities. During this reporting period, ongoing recycled water recharge occurred in the Brooks, 8th Street, Victoria, San 
Sevaine, Banana, RP-3, and Declez Basins; stormwater was recharged at 18 recharge basins across all Chino Basin management 
zones; and imported water was recharged at MVWD’s ASR wells, Upland, College Heights, Montclair, 8th Street, Turner, Lower Day, 
Etiwanda, San Sevaine, Hickory, RP-3, and Jurupa Basins. From July 1 through December 31, 2023, Watermaster and the IEUA 
recharged a total of 48,313 acre-feet of water: 8,408 acre-feet of stormwater, 4,245 acre-feet of recycled water, and 35,660 
acre-feet of imported water.  

Balance of Recharge and Discharge in MZ-1. The total amount of supplemental water recharged in MZ-1 since the Peace II 
Agreement through December 31, 2023 was approximately 149,373 acre-feet, which is about 38,873 acre-feet more than the 
110,500 acre-feet required by June 30, 2024 (annual requirement of 6,500 acre-feet). The amount of supplemental water 
recharged into MZ-1 during the reporting period was approximately 22,864 acre-feet.  

Program Element 3: Develop and Implement Water Supply Plan for the Impaired Areas of the Basin; and 
Program Element 5: Develop and Implement Regional Supplemental Water Program 

As stated in the OBMP, “the goal of Program Elements 3 and 5 is to develop a regional, long range, cost effective, equitable, water 
supply plan for producers in the Chino Basin that incorporates sound basin management.” One element of the water supply plan is the 
development of a way to replace the decline in agricultural groundwater production to prevent significant amounts of degraded 
groundwater from discharging to the Santa Ana River and violating the Basin Plan. Replacing the decline in agricultural groundwater 
production will mitigate the reduction of the Safe Yield of the basin and allow for more flexibility in the basin’s supplemental water 
supplies if the produced groundwater is treated. This is achieved through the operation of the Chino Basin Desalter facilities, which  

Page 49



Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 9 

Program Element 3: Develop and Implement Water Supply Plan for the Impaired Areas of the Basin; and 
Program Element 5: Develop and Implement Regional Supplemental Water Program (Continued) 

comprise a series of wells and treatment facilities in the southern Chino Basin that are designed to replace the decline of the 
agricultural groundwater producers and to treat and serve this groundwater to various Appropriative Pool members. 

The Chino I Desalter expansion and the Chino II Desalter facilities were completed in February 2006, bringing the total Chino Basin 
Desalter capacity to 29 million gallons per day (MGD) (32,480 acre-feet per year).  Development and planning continued between 
the Chino Desalter Authority (CDA) and Watermaster to expand the production and treatment capacity of the Chino Basin Desalter by 
about 10 MGD. More than $77 million in grant funds were secured toward this expansion. As currently configured, the Chino I 
Desalter treats about 14,500 acre-feet of groundwater per year (12.9 MGD) pumped from 14 wells (I-1 through I-11, and I-13 
through I-15). This water is treated through air stripping (volatile organic compound [VOC] removal), ion exchange (nitrate removal), 
and/or reverse osmosis (for nitrate and TDS removal). The Chino II Desalter produces about 25,500 acre-feet of groundwater per 
year (22.7 MGD) from pumping at eleven wells (II-1 through II-4 and II-6 through II-12). This water is treated through ion exchange 
and/or reverse osmosis. 

The most recently completed expansion of the Chino Basin Desalters included adding three wells (Wells II-10, II-11, and II-12) to 
Chino II Desalter. These wells provide additional raw water to the Chino II Desalter to meet the maximum-benefit commitment to 
produce a total of 40,000 acre-feet per year from the combined desalter well fields. These wells are also being utilized as part of 
the remediation action plan to clean up the South Archibald Plume (see the Program Element 6 update in this status report). 
Construction of wells II-10 and II-11 was completed in late 2015, equipping of the wells was completed in August 2018, and 
production at the wells commenced soon after. 

Construction of well II-12 was completed in November 2020. And construction of the dedicated pipeline to convey groundwater from 
wells II-12, II-10, II-11, and I-11 to the Chino II Desalter was completed in August 2021 and well II-12 began pumping soon after.  
The Chino Bain Desalters reached the 40,000 acre-feet  per year of pumping capacity in June 2020, prior to the commencement of 
pumping at well II-12. During the reporting period, the Chino Basin Desalters maintained the pumping rate of 40,000 acre-feet per 
year.  

Program Element 4: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Groundwater Management Plan for 
Management Zone 1 

Because of the historical occurrence of pumping induced land subsidence and ground fissuring in southwestern Chino Basin (Managed 
Area), the OBMP required the development and implementation of an Interim Management Plan (IMP) for MZ-1 that would: 

 Minimize subsidence and fissuring in the short-term. 

 Collect the information necessary to understand the extent, rate, and mechanisms of subsidence and fissuring. 

 Formulate a management plan to reduce to tolerable levels or abate future subsidence and fissuring.  

From 2001-2005, Watermaster developed, coordinated, and conducted an IMP under the guidance of the MZ-1 Technical Committee 
(referred to now as the Ground-Level Monitoring Committee or GLMC). The investigation provided enough information for 
Watermaster to develop Guidance Criteria for the MZ-1 producers in the investigation area that, if followed, would minimize the 
potential for subsidence and fissuring during the completion of the MZ-1 Plan. The Guidance Criteria included a list of Managed 
Wells and their owners subject to the criteria, a map of the so-called Managed Area, and an initial threshold water level (Guidance 
Level) of 245 feet below the top of the PA-7 well casing. The MZ-1 Summary Report and the Guidance Criteria were adopted by the 
Watermaster Board in May 2006. The Guidance Criteria formed the basis for the MZ-1 Plan, which was approved by Watermaster 
in October 2007. The Court approved the MZ-1 Plan in November 2007 and ordered its implementation. Watermaster has 
implemented the MZ-1 Plan since that time, including the ongoing Ground-Level Monitoring Program (GLMP) called for by the MZ-1 
Plan (refer to in Program Element 1).  

The MZ-1 Plan states that if data from existing monitoring efforts in the so-called Areas of Subsidence Concern indicate the potential 
for adverse impacts due to subsidence, Watermaster will revise the MZ-1 Plan pursuant to the process outlined in Section 3 of the 
MZ-1 Plan. In early 2015, Watermaster prepared an update to the MZ-1 Plan, which included a name change to the 2015 Chino 
Basin Subsidence Management Plan, and a Work Plan to Develop the Subsidence Management Plan for Northwest MZ-1 (Work Plan) as 
an appendix. The Chino Basin Subsidence Management Plan and the Work Plan were adopted through the Watermaster Pool process 
in July 2015. 

Page 50



Page 10 

Program Element 4: Develop and Implement a Comprehensive Groundwater Management Plan for 
Management Zone 1 (Continued) 

The data, analysis, and reports generated through the implementation of the MZ-1 Plan, Chino Basin Subsidence Management Plan, 
and Work Plan are reviewed and discussed by the GLMC, which meets on a periodic basis throughout the year. The GLMC is open to 
all interested participants, including the Watermaster Parties and their consultants. During this reporting period, Watermaster 
undertook the following data analysis and reporting tasks:  

 Finalized the 2022-23 Annual Report for the Ground-Level Monitoring Program including responses to GLMC comments. 

 Published a draft technical memorandum titled: 1D Model Simulation of Subsidence in Northwest MZ-1—Subsidence 
Management Alternative #1. This work was used to understand the potential future rates of subsidence in Northwest 
MZ-1 through 2050 under the pumping/recharge plans of the parties as simulated for the 2020 Safe Yield Reset. The 
recommendation from this work is that Watermaster should establish a “Northwest MZ-1 Guidance Level” of 630 
ft-amsl for hydraulic heads in Layers 3 and 5 at the PX location. This Guidance Level approximates the current and 
projected heads in Layer 1 where the current and projected rates of compaction are the lowest. The Guidance Level 
would be an aspirational Watermaster recommendation that, if achieved, would likely slow the rates of compaction and 
subsidence to more tolerable levels over time. 

One GLMC meeting was conducted during the reporting period on October 4, 2023. The meeting agenda included: 

 Review the draft 2022-23 Annual Report for the Ground-Level Monitoring Program. 

 Review the draft technical memorandum: 1D Model Simulation of Subsidence in Northwest MZ-1—Subsidence 
Management Alternative #1.    

Program Element 6: Develop and Implement Cooperative Programs with the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Santa Ana Region and Other Agencies to Improve Basin Management 

Program Elements 6 and 7 are necessary to address the water quality management problems in the Chino Basin. During the 
development of the OBMP, it was identified that Watermaster did not have sufficient information to determine whether point and 
non-point sources of groundwater contamination are being adequately addressed, including the various Chino Basin contaminant 
plumes. With the Santa Ana Water Board and other agencies, Watermaster has worked to address the following major point source 
contaminant plumes in the Chino Basin:  

South Archibald Plume  

In July 2005, the Santa Ana Water Board prepared draft Cleanup and Abatement Orders (CAOs) for six parties who were tenants 
on the Ontario Airport regarding the South Archibald Trichloroethene (TCE) Plume in the southern portion of the Chino Basin.  The draft 
CAOs required the parties to “submit a work plan and time schedule to further define the lateral and vertical extent of the TCE and 
related VOCs that are discharging, have been discharged, or threaten to be discharged from the site” and to “submit a detailed 
remedial action plan, including an implementation schedule, to cleanup or abate the effects of the TCE and related VOCs.” Four of the 
six parties (Aerojet-General Corporation, The Boeing Company, General Electric, and Lockheed Martin) voluntarily formed a group 
known as ABGL to work jointly on a remedial investigation.  Northrop Grumman declined to participate in the group. The US Air 
Force, in cooperation with the US Army Corps of Engineers, funded the installation of one of the four clusters of monitoring wells 
installed by the ABGL Parties.  

In 2008, Santa Ana Water Board staff conducted research pertaining to the likely source of the TCE contamination and identified 
discharges of wastewater that may have contained TCE to the RP-1 treatment plant and associated disposal areas as a potential 
source. The Santa Ana Water Board identified several industries, including some previously identified tenants of the Ontario Airport 
property, that likely used TCE solvents before and during the early-1970s, and discharged wastes to the Cities of Ontario and 
Upland’s sewage systems and subsequently to the RP-1 treatment plant and disposal areas. In 2012, an additional Draft CAO was 
issued by the Santa Ana Water Board jointly to the City of Ontario, City of Upland, and IEUA as the previous and current operators 
of the RP-1 treatment plant and disposal area (collectively, the RP-1 Parties). In part, the draft CAOs require that RP-1 Parties 
“supply uninterrupted replacement water service […] to all residences south of Riverside Drive that are served by private domestic 
wells at which TCE has been detected at concentrations at or exceeding 5 µg/L […]” and to report this information to the Santa Ana 
Water Board.  In addition, the RP-1 Parties are to “prepare and submit [a] […] feasibility study” and “prepare, submit and 
implement the Remedial Action Plan” to mitigate the “effects of the TCE groundwater plume.” 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 51



Program Element 6: Develop and Implement Cooperative Programs with the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Santa Ana Region and Other Agencies to Improve Basin Management (Continued) 

Under the Santa Ana Water Board’s oversight, the ABGL Parties and/or the RP-1 Parties conducted sampling four sample events at 
private residential wells and taps between 2007 and 2014 in the region where groundwater is potentially contaminated with TCE. By 
2014, all private wells and/or taps in the region of the plume had been sampled at least once. Alternative water systems (tanks) 
have been installed at residences in the area where well or tap water contains TCE at or above 80 percent of the maximum 
contaminant level (MCL) for TCE. Residents who declined tank systems are being provided bottled water. Watermaster also samples 
for water quality at private wells in the area and uses this and other data obtained from its data collection programs to 
independently delineate the spatial extent of the plume. Watermaster completed its most recent characterization of the plume in June 
2021 for the 2020 Chino Basin OBMP State of the Basin Report. In October of this reporting period, Watermaster prepared a semi-
annual status report on the South Archibald Plume for Watermaster Parties. 

In July 2015, the RP-1 Parties completed the Draft Feasibility Study Report for the South Archibald Plume (Feasibility Study). The 
Feasibility Study established cleanup objectives for both domestic water supply and plume remediation and evaluated alternatives to 
accomplish these objectives. In November 2015, a revised Draft Feasibility Study, Remedial Action Plan, and Responses to Comments 
were completed to address input from the public, the ABGL, and others. In September 2016, the Santa Ana Water Board issued the 
Final CAO R8-2016-0016 collectively to the RP-1 Parties and the ABGL Parties. The Final CAO was adopted by all parties in 
November 2016, thus approving the preferred plume remediation and domestic water supply alternatives identified in the Remedial 
Action Plan.  The parties also reached a settlement agreement that aligns with the Final CAO and authorizes funding to initiate 
implementation of the plume remediation alternative.  

The plume remediation alternative involves the use of CDA production wells and facilities. The RP-1 Parties reached a Joint Facility 
Development Agreement with the CDA for the implementation of a project designed in part to remediate the South Archibald Plume. 
The project, termed the Chino Basin Improvement and Groundwater Clean-up Project, includes the operation of three newly 
constructed CDA wells (II-10, II-11, and II-12) and a dedicated pipeline connecting the three wells and the existing CDA well I-11 to 
the Desalter II treatment facility. Construction of two of the three wells (II-10 and II-11) were completed and became operational in 
2018. The construction of well II-12 was completed in November 2020.  In the first half of 2021, the RP-1 Parties and the CDA 
submitted the final Monitoring and Reporting Plan for the Chino Basin Improvement and Groundwater Clean-up Project to the Santa Ana 
Water Board and completed the construction of five multi-depth monitoring wells at two locations in the South Archibald Plume (II-MW
-4 and II-MW-5). In 2021, the CDA completed the equipping of well II-12, the modification to the decarbonator, and the construction 
of the raw water pipeline, and the project became operational in August of 2021. 

The domestic water supply alternative for the private residences affected by TCE groundwater contamination is a hybrid between the 
installation of tank systems for some residences, where water is delivered from the City of Ontario potable supply via truck deliveries, 
and the installation of a temporary pipeline to connect some residences to the City of Ontario potable water system. The Cities of 
Ontario and Upland have assumed responsibility for implementing the domestic water supply alternative. In February 2017, the Cities 
of Ontario and Upland submitted the Domestic Water Supply Work Plan to the Santa Ana Water Board to outline the approach to 
monitoring and supplying alternative water supplies for affected residences. The City of Ontario will continue to monitor for 
potentially affected residences to ensure that an alternative water supply is offered and provided to any residences with TCE 
concentrations greater than 80% of the MCL for TCE. During this reporting period the City of Ontario completed the annual water 
supply sampling event at private residences pursuant to the Domestic Water Supply Plan and prepared and submitted an annual 
monitoring report of the results to the Santa Ana Water Board in December 2023. As of the end of 2023, there are 30 affected 
residences that are being supplied water by tank systems, and five affected residences that remain on bottled water.  

Chino Airport Plume 

In 1990, the Santa Ana Water Board issued CAO No. 90-134 to the County of San Bernardino, Department of Airports 
(County) to address groundwater contamination originating from Chino Airport. During 1991 to 1992, ten underground 
storage tanks and 310 containers of hazardous waste were removed, and 81 soil borings were drilled and sampled on 
the airport property. From 2003 to 2005, nine onsite monitoring wells were installed and used to collect groundwater 
quality samples. In 2007, the County conducted its first offsite monitoring effort, and in 2008, the Santa Ana Water 
Board issued CAO No. R8-2008-0064, requiring the County to define the lateral and vertical extent of the plume and 
prepare a remedial action plan. From 2009 to 2015, Tetra Tech, consultant to the County, conducted several off-site 
and on-site plume characterization studies to delineate the areal and vertical extent of the plume and constructed 66 
monitoring wells. In August 2016, the County completed a Draft Feasibility Study to identify remedial action objectives 
and evaluate remediation alternatives for mitigation. In January 2017, the Santa Ana Water Board issued CAO 
R8-2017-0011, which requires the County to prepare a Final Feasibility Study that incorporates comments from the  

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 11 

Page 52



Program Element 6: Develop and Implement Cooperative Programs with the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Santa Ana Region and Other Agencies to Improve Basin Management (Continued) 

Santa Ana Water Board and to prepare, submit, and implement a Remedial Action Plan. The County submitted a Final 
Feasibility Study on June 6, 2017, and it was approved by the Santa Ana Water Board on June 7, 2017. On 
December 18, 2017, the County submitted the Draft Interim Remedial Action Plan with the remediation alternative is a 
groundwater pump-and-treat system to provide hydraulic containment and treatment of the Chino Airport plume.  The 
system consists of ten extraction wells that will produce approximately 1,700 gallons per minute along with 
groundwater produced from CDA’s I-16 through I-18. The groundwater extracted will be conveyed to a new granular 
activated carbon (GAC) constructed by the CDA, with funding shared by the County (South GAC System). An additional 
treatment system (North GAC System) constructed by CDA will treat water from four CDA wells (I-I through I-4) that 
produce from the lower aquifer in the plume; however, this system is not associated with the County’s remedial action. 
Once treated at the South GAC system, water will be conveyed to the existing Chino I Desalter that uses reverse 
osmosis and ion exchange to treat for nitrate and TDS and will be discharged for use as potable municipal water 
supply. 

Since 2018, the County constructed five extraction wells, 12 piezometers, and 14 monitoring wells to assist with the design for the 
remedial solution and delineation of the plume. In 2022, the County completed the final Remedial Action Work Plan which divides the 
construction of the pump and treat system into two phases. The first Phase (1) is in progress and includes the construction of the 
remaining onsite extraction wells, conveyance pipeline, and additional monitoring wells, which should be completed by 2025. Phase 2 
will focus on offsite locations of the treatment system. In April 2023, CDA wells I-17 (offline for 5 years) and I-18 (never been online) 
within the Chino Airport plume began pumping and conveyed  groundwater for treatment at the South GAC System. During this 
reporting period the County commenced construction of the onsite extraction wells, and acquisition of property rights for the  offsite 
extraction wells and pipeline as part of Phase 2.  

Watermaster has commitments to this area within the vicinity of the Chino Airport to maintain Hydraulic Control and to avoid impacts 
to the groundwater dependent riparian habitat in the Prado Basin, and in 2018 Watermaster used the Chino Basin groundwater flow 
model to analyze how increased groundwater production for the remedial solution will affect groundwater levels within the vicinity. 
Watermaster completed the modeling and prepared a technical memorandum to describe the results, which concluded that operation 
of the remedial solution would improve Hydraulic Control in this area. And in January 2022,  the County completed construction of six 
wells near the riparian habitat along Chino Creek and initiated monitoring of groundwater levels for potential impacts from pumping 
at the remedial solution.   

The County conducts quarterly and/or annual monitoring events at all 89 of their monitoring wells constructed to date. The conclusions 
from this monitoring program can be found in reports posted on the Santa Ana Water Board’s GeoTracker website. The most recent 
monitoring report submitted to the Santa Ana Water Board is the Semiannual Groundwater Monitoring Report Winter and Spring 2023 
Chino Airport Groundwater Assessment, San Bernardino County, California, which was submitted to the Santa Ana Water Board in 
during this reporting period in December 2023.  Watermaster also samples for water quality at private and monitoring wells in the 
area and uses this and other data obtained from its data collection programs to independently delineate the spatial extent of the 
plume. In June 2023, Watermaster completed its most recent characterization of the plume for the 2022 Chino Basin OBMP State of 
the Basin Report. In October of this reporting period, Watermaster prepared a semi-annual status report on the Chino Airport Plume 
for Watermaster Parties.   

Other Plumes 

Watermaster continues to track the monitoring programs and mitigation measures associated with other point sources in the Chino 
Basin, including: Alumax Aluminum Recycling, Alger Manufacturing Facility, the Former Crown Coach Facility, General Electric Test Cell 
and Flatiron, Former Kaiser Steel Mill, Milliken Landfill, Upland Landfill, and the Stringfellow National Priorities List sites. During this 
reporting period, Watermaster prepared the most recent annual status reports in October 2023 for the GE Test Cell, GE Flatiron, 
Milliken Landfill, California Institution for Men, Stringfellow Plumes, and the former Kaiser Steel Mill site. The most current 
Watermaster delineations of the extent of these (VOC) plumes were completed in June 2023 for the 2022 Chino Basin OBMP State 
of the Basin Report. 

Water Quality Management Program  

Through the collaborative stakeholder process to update the OBMP in 2020 (see 2020 OBMP Update section of this report), the 
parties identified a new management action under PE 6 to development of a Water Quality Management Program (WQMP) that 
addresses contaminants of emerging regulations of concern to better prepare the parties for addressing compliance with new State  

Page 12 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 53



Program Element 6: Develop and Implement Cooperative Programs with the Regional Water Quality 
Control Board, Santa Ana Region and Other Agencies to Improve Basin Management (Continued) 

and Federal drinking water regulations, and provides for the long-term maximum beneficial use of the basin. It was identified that 
reconvening the Water Quality Committee (WQC) that met historically from 2003 to 2010 to implement PE 6 of the 2000 OBMP 
would be the ideal approach to guide the development and implementation of the WQMP.  During this reporting period, 
Watermaster held a kick-off meeting to reconvene the WQC on October 18, 2023. The October WQC meeting attendees were 
asked to provide initial feedback on the emerging contaminants to monitor for the initial Emerging Contaminants Monitoring Plan to 
support the development of a WQMP and what are some of the initial goals and objectives for a WQMP and the WQC.  

Program Element 7: Develop and Implement a Salt Management Program 

Maximum Benefit Salt and Nutrient Management Plan 

In January 2004, the Santa Ana Water Board amended the Basin Plan to incorporate an updated TDS and nitrogen (N) management 
plan. The Basin Plan amendment includes both "antidegradation" and “maximum-benefit” objectives for TDS and nitrate as N (nitrate) 
for the Chino-North and Cucamonga groundwater management zones (GMZs). The maximum-benefit objectives allow for recycled 
water reuse and recharge of recycled and imported waters without the immediate need for mitigation; these activities are an integral 
part of the OBMP. The application of the maximum-benefit objectives is contingent on the implementation of specific projects and 
requirements termed the maximum-benefit commitments by Watermaster and IEUA. The status of compliance with each commitment is 
reported to the Santa Ana Water Board annually in April. The nine maximum-benefit commitments include:  

1. The development and implementation of a surface water monitoring program. 

2. The development and implementation of a groundwater monitoring program. 

3. The expansion of the Chino I Desalter to a capacity of 10 MGD and the construction of the Chino II Desalter with a 
design capacity of 10 MGD. 

4. The additional expansion of desalter capacity (to 40 MGD) pursuant to the OBMP and the Peace Agreement (tied to 
the IEUA’s agency-wide effluent TDS concentration). 

5. The completion of the recharge facilities included in the Chino Basin Facilities Improvement Program. 

6. The management of recycled water quality to ensure that the IEUA agency-wide, 12-month volume-weighted running 
average TDS and TIN concentrations do not exceed 550 mgl and 8 mgl, respectively. 

7. The management of basin-wide, volume-weighted TDS and nitrogen concentrations in artificial recharge to less than or 
equal to the maximum-benefit objectives of 420 mgl and 5 mgl, respectively, on a five-year volume-weighted basis. 

8. The achievement and maintenance of the “Hydraulic Control” of groundwater outflow from the Chino-North GMZ to 
protect Santa Ana River water quality and downstream beneficial uses. 

9. The determination of ambient TDS and nitrate concentrations of Chino Basin groundwater every three years.  

Monitoring Programs. Pursuant to maximum-benefit commitment numbers 1 and 2, Watermaster and the IEUA submitted a surface 
water and groundwater monitoring program work plan to the Santa Ana Water Board in May 2004. On April 15, 2005, the Santa 
Ana Water Board adopted resolution R8-2005-0064, approving Watermaster and the IEUA’s surface and groundwater monitoring 
programs (2005 Work Plan). These monitoring programs were implemented pursuant to the 2005 Work Plan from 2004 to 2012. On 
February 12, 2012, the Santa Ana Water Board adopted an amendment to the Basin Plan to remove all references to the specific 
monitoring locations and sampling frequencies required for groundwater and surface water monitoring. The Basin Plan amendment 
allows the monitoring programs to be modified over time, subject to the approval of the Executive Officer of the Santa Ana Water 
Board. On December 6, 2012, the State Office of Administrative Law finalized the approval of the Basin Plan amendment. In place 
of specific monitoring requirements, the Basin Plan amendment required that Watermaster and the IEUA submit (i) a new surface 
water monitoring program work plan by February 25, 2012, and (ii) a new groundwater monitoring program work plan by 
December 31, 2013 to the Santa Ana Water Board for approval. Pursuant to (i), Watermaster and the IEUA submitted the 2012 
Hydraulic Control Monitoring Program Work Plan, which was approved by the Santa Ana Water Board in March 2012. Pursuant to 
(ii), Watermaster and the IEUA submitted the 2014 Maximum-Benefit Monitoring Program Work Plan (2014 Work Plan) which was 
approved by the Santa Ana Water Board in April 2014. The 2014 Workplan describes: the questions to be answered by the 
monitoring program, the methods that will be employed to address each question, the monitoring and data collection that will be 
performed to implement the methods, and a reporting schedule. The monitoring pursuant to the 2014 Work Plan is incorporated as  

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 13 

Page 54



Program Element 7: Develop and Implement a Salt Management Program (Continued) 

part of the groundwater level, groundwater quality, and surface water monitoring programs described in Program Element 1. During 
this reporting period, Watermaster continued to implement the monitoring programs (see Program Element 1 for details). 

Hydraulic Control and Chino Basin Desalters. Pursuant to maximum-benefit commitment number 8, to achieve and maintain 
Hydraulic Control, the Chino Basin Desalters were expanded (maximum-benefit commitments numbers 3 and 4) to increase production 
in the southern portion of the Chino Basin. The Chino Basin Desalters are designed to replace the decreased agricultural production 
that previously prevented the outflow of high TDS and nitrate groundwater to the Santa Ana River and the Prado Basin surface water 
management zone (PBMZ). Hydraulic Control is defined by the Basin Plan as the elimination of groundwater discharge from the Chino-
North GMZ to the Santa Ana River to a de minimis level. Pursuant to commitment number 8, Watermaster and the IEUA submitted a 
mitigation plan (2005 Mitigation Plan) to the Santa Ana Water Board in March 2005. This plan demonstrated how Watermaster and 
the IEUA would address the mitigation for any temporary loss of Hydraulic Control. In October 2011, the Santa Ana Water Board 
defined the de minimis discharge of groundwater from the Chino-North GMZ to the PBMZ as 1,000 acre-feet per year or less. 
Watermaster and the IEUA have demonstrated that complete Hydraulic Control has been achieved at and east of Chino I Desalter 
Well 20. The construction and operation of the CCWF (see Program Element 5), which began in 2010, is intended to achieve 
Hydraulic Control, per the definition above, at the area west of Chino I Desalter Well 5. Watermaster and the IEUA recalibrate the 
Chino Basin groundwater-flow model every five years to estimate groundwater discharge from the Chino-North GMZ to the PBMZ 
(i.e., annual underflow past the CCWF) to determine whether Hydraulic Control has been achieved. 

In February 2016, the CCWF commenced full-scale operation with production at wells I-16, I-17, I-20, and I-21 to achieve and 
maintain Hydraulic Control at the area west of Chino I Desalter Well 5. Production at the CCWF has decreased since 2017 as a result 
of the new MCL for 1,2,3-TCP, which required the temporary cessation of operation at Well I-17. In 2020, the Chino Basin 
groundwater-flow model was used to estimate the historical (fiscal year 2004-2018) and projected (fiscal year 2019-2050) volume 
of groundwater discharge past the CCWF under revised pumping conditions at the CCWF. The model results indicate that both the 
estimated historical and projected discharge past the CCWF area are always below the de minimis threshold level of 1,000 acre-feet 
per year. The model assumes an annual average pumping volume at the CCWF of 992 acre-feet per year from fiscal year 2019 
through 2050.  

Future agricultural groundwater production in the southern part of the basin is expected to continue to decline, necessitating future 
expansion of the desalters to sustain Hydraulic Control. In a letter dated January 23, 2014, the Santa Ana Water Board required 
that Watermaster and the IEUA submit a plan detailing how Hydraulic Control will be sustained in the future as agricultural production 
in the southern region of Chino-North continues to decrease—specifically, how the Chino Basin Desalters will achieve the required total 
groundwater production level of 40,000 acre-feet per year. On June 30, 2015, Watermaster and the IEUA submitted a final plan 
and schedule for the construction and operation of three new desalter wells (II-10, II-11, and II-12). Well II-10 and II-11 were 
constructed and began operation in mid-2018, and Well II-12 was constructed in 2020 and began operation in mid-2021. The Chino 
Basin Desalters officially reached the pumping capacity necessary to meet the 40,000 acre-feet per year required for Hydraulic 
Control in June 2020. This pumping capacity was achieved without the inclusion of Well II-12, which was operational in August 2021 
and was part of the final expansion plan designed to meet the 40,000 acre-feet per year. A full status report on the desalter 
expansion facilities is described in Program Element 3.  

Watermaster prepared an update to the 2005 Mitigation Plan to formally update (i) plan and schedule for the mitigation of any 
temporary loss of Hydraulic Control, (ii) definition of the required minimum pumping at the CCWF to maintain outflows from the 
Chino-North GMZ to the PBMZ to de minimis level, and (iii) definition of operational flexibility around the 40,000 acre-feet per year 
requirement for the aggregate pumping at the CDA facilities. The draft updated mitigation plan was submitted to the Santa Ana 
Water Board on June 30, 2022.  

During this reporting period, Watermaster, IEUA, and CDA met with the Santa Ana Water Board staff in September and October 
2023 to discuss the draft updated mitigation plan. Following the meetings, IEUA and Watermaster finalized and submitted the 
mitigation plan to the Santa Ana Water Board on December 11, 2023. The updated mitigation plan: removed the definition of the 
minimum pumping requirement at the CCWF to maintain Hydraulic Control; provided definition of operational flexibility for desalter 
production fluctuations on the order of plus or minus 2,100 acre-feet a year that maintain a five-year average pumping of about 
40,000 acre-feet a year; and updated protocol for mitigation of temporary loss of Hydraulic Control.  

Recycled Water Quality. Pursuant to the maximum-benefit commitment number 6, Watermaster and the IEUA manage the recycled 
water quality to ensure that the 12-month volume-weighted running average IEUA agency-wide, wastewater effluent quality does not 
exceed the permit limits of 550 mgl and 8 mgl for TDS and TIN, respectively. Additionally, Watermaster and the IEUA must submit a  

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 14 

Page 55



Program Element 7: Develop and Implement a Salt Management Program (Continued) 

plan and schedule to the Santa Ana Water Board for the implementation of measures to ensure long-term compliance with these 
permit limits when either the 12-month volume-weighted running average IEUA agency-wide effluent TDS concentration exceeds 545 
mgl for three consecutive months or the TIN concentration exceeds 8 mgl in any one month (action limits). The IEUA calculates and 
reports the 12-month volume-weighted running average agency-wide effluent TDS and TIN concentrations in the Groundwater 
Recharge Program Quarterly Monitoring Reports. 

Since the initiation of recycled water recharge in July 2005, the 12-month running average TDS and TIN concentrations have ranged 
between 456 and 534 mgl and 3.8 and 7.6 mgl, respectively, and have never exceeded the permit limits. During the statewide 
drought in mid-2015, a historical high 12-month running average IEUA agency-wide effluent TDS concentration of 534 mgl was 
calculated for three consecutive months: June, July, and August.  This 12-month running average IEUA agency-wide effluent TDS 
concentration of 534 mgl was only 11 mgl below the action limit. The 12-month running average agency-wide TDS concentration has 
decreased since mid-2015. As of December 2023, the 12-month running average IEUA agency-wide effluent TDS concentration was 
464 mgl. 

Through analysis of water supply and wastewater data, Watermaster and the IEUA concluded that drought conditions have a 
meaningful impact on the short-term TDS concentration of the water supplies available to IEUA agencies and that future droughts 
similar to the 2012-2016 period could lead to short-term exceedances of the 12-month running average IEUA agency-wide effluent 
TDS concentration. For this reason, in October 2016, Watermaster and the IEUA petitioned the Santa Ana Water Board to consider 
modifying the TDS compliance metric for recycled water to a longer-term averaging period. The Santa Ana Water Board agreed 
that an evaluation of the compliance metric was warranted and directed Watermaster and the IEUA to develop a technical scope of 
work to support the adoption of a longer-term averaging period for incorporation into the Basin Plan. The proposed technical scope 
of work to support a Basin Plan amendment to revise the recycled water compliance metric was submitted to the Santa Ana Water 
Board in May 2017. The proposed scope of work which was approved by the Santa Ana Water Board includes the following tasks:  

 Develop numerical modeling tools (R4, Hydrus 2D, MODFLOW, MT3D) to evaluate the projected TDS and nitrate 
concentrations of the Chino Basin. 

 Define a baseline (status-quo) scenario and evaluate it with the new modeling tools. 

 Define salinity management planning scenarios and evaluate them with the new modeling tools to compare the 
projected TDS and nitrate concentrations against the baseline scenario. 

 Use the results to develop a draft regulatory compliance strategy that includes a longer-term average period for 
recycled water TDS concentrations. 

 Collaborate with the Santa Ana Water Board to review and finalize the regulatory strategy. 

 Support the Santa Ana Water Board in the preparation of a Basin Plan amendment upon approval of the regulatory 
strategy.  

Watermaster and the IEUA began implementing the scope of work in July 2017 and worked collaboratively with Santa Ana Water 
Board staff to review interim work products. In December 2021, Watermaster and the IEUA completed and submitted the 
documentation of the technical work, Total Dissolved Solids and Nitrate Concentrations Projections for the Chino Basin, to the Santa Ana 
Water Board. Watermaster and the IEUA presented the technical work and received approval from the Santa Ana Water Board 
staff in July 2022 to proceed with the work to amend the Basin Plan. Specifically, the amendment to the Basin Plan will, in part, 
modify the TDS compliance metrics and action limit for IEUA’s recycled water supply under maximum-benefit commitment number 6 to 
a 10-year volume-weighted running average of the agency-wide supply.  

During this reporting period, Watermaster and the IEUA provided support to the Santa Ana Water Board staff on the Basin Plan 
amendment, including preparing documents to comply with California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) and other requirements 
needed to amend the Basin Plan.  

Recycled Water Recharge. Pursuant to the maximum-benefit commitment number 5, Watermaster and the IEUA completed the 
construction of the recharge facilities and began artificial recharge of stormwater and recycled water in the Chino Basin in 2005.  
Additionally, pursuant to maximum-benefit commitment number 7, Watermaster and the IEUA limit recycled water for artificial 
recharge to the amount that can be blended on a volume-weighted basis with other sources of recharge to achieve five-year running 
average concentrations of no more than the maximum-benefit objectives (420 and 5 mgl for TDS and nitrate, respectively). This data 
is compiled and analyzed in April of each year for reporting to the Santa Ana Water Board. During this reporting period,  

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 15 

Page 56



Program Element 7: Develop and Implement a Salt Management Program (Continued) 

Watermaster and the IEUA continued their monitoring programs to collect the data required for analysis and reporting to the Santa 
Ana Water Board. Since recycled water recharge began in July 2005, the five-year volume-weighted running average TDS and 
nitrate concentrations have never exceeded the maximum-benefit objectives. As of December 2022, the five-year volume-weighted 
running average TDS and nitrate concentrations of these three recharge sources were 314 and 1.8 mgl respectively.   

As part of the Basin Plan amendment, the TDS and nitrate compliance metrics for the artificial recharge under maximum-benefit 
commitment number 5 are proposed to be modified to 10-year volume-weighted running average. During this reporting period, 
Watermaster and the IEUA continue to provide supports to the Santa Ana Water Board staff with the Basin Plan amendment. 

Ambient Groundwater Quality. Pursuant to the maximum-benefit commitment number 9, Watermaster and the IEUA recompute 
ambient TDS and nitrate concentrations for the Chino Basin and Cucamonga GMZs every three years (due by June 30). The 
re-computation of ambient water quality is performed for the entire Santa Ana River Watershed, and the technical work is contracted, 
managed, and directed by the Santa Ana Watershed Project Authority’s (SAWPA) Basin Monitoring Program Task Force (Task Force). 
Watermaster and the IEUA have participated in each triennial, watershed-wide ambient water quality determination as members of 
the Task Force.  

In December 2021, the Santa Ana Water Board amended the Basin Plan (2021 Basin Plan Amendment [R8-2021-0025]) to require 
the Task Force to complete the next re-computation by October 1, 2023, and, at a minimum, every five years thereafter (unless the 
Santa Ana Water Board revises this schedule). The Santa Ana Water Board is currently preparing an amendment to the Basin Plan to 
ensure that the ambient water quality computation for GMZs with maximum-benefit SNMPs is consistent with the schedule defined in 
the 2021 Basin Plan Amendment.  

During this reporting period, Watermaster and the IEUA participated in the Task Force effort to compute the 2021 ambient water 
quality, which covers the 20-year period from 2002 to 2021. As part of this computation, Watermaster and the IEUA provided 
requested groundwater quality data, inputs on interim findings, and reviewed draft documentations to support the computation of the 
2021 ambient water quality. The Task Force finalized the 2021 ambient water quality determination on October 1, 2023. 

Program Element 8: Develop and Implement a Groundwater Storage Management Program; and 
Program Element 9: Develop and Implement a Storage and Recovery Program 

Groundwater storage is critical to the Chino Basin stakeholders. The OBMP outlines Watermaster’s commitments to investigate the 
technical and management implications of Local Storage Agreements, improve related policies and procedures, and then revisit all 
pending Local Storage Agreement applications. 

The existing Watermaster/IEUA/MWDSC/Three Valleys Municipal Water District Dry-Year Yield (DYY) program was initiated in the 
early 2000’s and is the only Storage and Recovery Program that is being implemented in the Chino Basin. By April 30, 2011, all DYY 
program construction projects and a full “put” and “take” cycle had been completed, leaving the DYY storage account with a zero 
balance. Another DYY cycle began in June 2017 and was completed in June 2022. In response to the heavy precipitation in early 
2023, MWDSC began recharging imported water in the Chino Basin in spring 2023. During the reporting period, MWDSC recharged 
about 29,800 acre-feet of imported water in the Chino Basin through the DYY program.  

Safe Yield Recalculation  

The Basin’s Safe Yield was initially set by the Judgment at 140,000 acre-feet per year. The Safe Yield was based on the hydrology 
for the period of 1965 through 1974. Pursuant to the Judgment, the Chino Basin Safe Yield is to be recalculated periodically but not 
for at least ten years following 1978. 

Pursuant to the OBMP Implementation Plan and Watermaster’s Rules and Regulations, in year 2010/11 and every ten years 
thereafter, Watermaster is to recalculate the Safe Yield. The 2011 Safe Yield recalculation began in 2011 and after significant 
technical and legal process, on April 28, 2017, the Court issued a final order (2017 Court Order), resetting the Safe Yield to 
135,000 acre-feet per year effective July 1, 2010. 

In July 2018, Watermaster’s Engineer began the technical work necessary for the Safe Yield recalculation for 2020 pursuant to the 
OBMP Implementation Plan using the approved methodology in the 2017 Court Order. After substantial technical process and 
stakeholder engagement, the Watermaster Board adopted recommendations to the Court to update the Safe Yield for the period 
2021 through 2030 to 131,000 acre-feet per year. In July 2020, the Court approved Watermaster’s recommendation and reset the 
Safe Yield to 131,000 acre-feet per year for the period commencing on July 1, 2020 and ending on June 30, 2030. 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 16 

Page 57



Program Element 8: Develop and Implement a Groundwater Storage Management Program; and 
Program Element 9: Develop and Implement a Storage and Recovery Program (Continued) 

The 2017 Court Order 1) requires that the Safe Yield be reevaluated no later than June 30, 2025, 2) allows for supplementation of 
the current Safe Yield Reset methodology, and 3) requires annual collection and evaluation of data regarding cultural conditions of 
the Chino Basin. The annual data collection and evaluation process includes determining whether “there has been or will be a material 
change from existing and projected conditions or threatened undesirable results” as compared to the conditions evaluated in the 2020 
Safe Yield Recalculation. If evaluation of the data suggests that any of these criteria are met, then Watermaster’s Engineer is 
required to undertake “a more significant evaluation” to model the impacts of the existing and projected cultural conditions on the 
Chino Basin. 

In 2022, Watermaster’s Engineer completed a process to supplement the current Safe Yield Reset methodology to address comments 
received during the peer review process of the 2020 Safe Yield recalculation regarding uncertainty in the groundwater model and 
the data used in future projections. As a result of this process, which was supported by extensive peer review, Watermaster submitted 
an updated Safe Yield Reset methodology (2022 Safe Yield Reset methodology) to the Court. The Court approved the 2022 Safe 
Yield Reset methodology in December 2022.  

During the reporting period, Watermaster’s Engineer initiated the annual data collection and evaluation process covering the period 
through fiscal year 2022/23 and continued the process to reevaluate the Safe Yield of the Chino Basin for the period of fiscal year 
2021 through 2030 (the 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation). The 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation process includes updating Watermaster’s 
groundwater-flow model and implementing the 2022 Safe Yield Reset methodology. Watermaster hosted two workshops during the 
reporting period to gather stakeholder and peer review input to support the 2025 Safe Yield Reevaluation.  

Groundwater Storage Management 

Addendum to PEIR. The original OBMP storage management program consists of managing groundwater production, replenishment, 
recharge, and storage such that the total storage within the basin lies within the range known as the Safe Storage Capacity (SSC), 
which is the difference between the Safe Storage2 and the Operational Storage Requirement3. The allocation and use of storage 
space in excess of the Safe Storage Capacity will preemptively require mitigation: mitigation must be defined, and resources must be 
committed to mitigation prior to allocation and use. 

Water occupying the SSC includes Local Storage Account Water, Carryover Water, and water anticipated to be stored in future 
groundwater Storage and Recovery programs. This storage management program was evaluated in the OBMP programmatic 
environmental impact report (PEIR) in 2000. 

After the OBMP PEIR, Watermaster and the Watermaster Parties revised the OBMP based on: new monitoring and borehole data 
collected since 1998, an improved hydrogeologic conceptualization of the basin, new numerical models that have improved the 
understanding of basin hydrology since 2000, and the need to expand the Chino Basin Desalters (desalters) to the 40,000 acre-feet 
per year of groundwater production required in the OBMP Implementation Plan.  These investigations included a recalculation of the 
total water in storage in the basin, based on the improved hydrogeologic understanding.  The total storage in the Chino Basin for 
2000 was estimated to be about 5.9 million acre-feet4, about 100,000 acre-feet greater than the estimated Safe Storage at the 
time. 

The Watermaster Parties negotiated the Peace II Agreement to implement, among other things, the expansion of the desalters, the 
dedication of 400,000 acre-feet of groundwater in storage to desalter replenishment (i.e., approved overdraft), and changes in the 
Judgment to implement the Peace II Agreement. However, the storage management plan was not changed in light of the approved 
overdraft and the fact that the estimated storage in the basin exceeded the Safe Storage. The IEUA completed and subsequently 
adopted a supplemental environmental impact report for the Peace II Agreement in 2010. 

As basin storage continued to grow following the implementation of the desalters and the Peace II Agreement, Watermaster and the 
IEUA proposed a temporary increase in the Safe Storage Capacity, which was analyzed through an addendum to the 2000 PEIR. On 
March 15, 2017, the IEUA adopted an addendum to the 2000 PEIR, increasing the Safe Storage Capacity from 500,000 acre-feet to 
600,000 acre-feet for the period July 1, 2017 through June 30, 2021. This temporary increase in Safe Storage Capacity was found 
to not cause material physical injury (MPI) and/or loss of Hydraulic Control, and it provided Watermaster, with assistance from the 
Parties, time to develop a new storage management plan and agreements to implement it.  

Optimum Basin Management Program 

2 Safe Storage is an estimate of the maximum storage in the basin that will not cause significant water quality and high groundwater related problems. Safe Storage 
was estimated in the development of the OBMP to be about 5.8 million acre-feet based on the then-current understanding of the basin. 

3 The Operational Storage Requirement is the storage or volume in the Chino Basin that is necessary to maintain the Safe Yield. This is an average value with the stor-
age oscillating around this value due to dry and wet periods in precipitation. The Operational Storage Requirement was estimated in the development of the OBMP 
to be about 5.3 million acre-feet. This storage value was set at the estimated storage in the basin in 1997. 

4 The most recent modeling of the Chino Basin estimates the total water in storage to be about 12 million acre-feet. Page 17 

Page 58



Program Element 8: Develop and Implement a Groundwater Storage Management Program; and 
Program Element 9: Develop and Implement a Storage and Recovery Program (Continued) 

2020 Storage Management Plan. In 2019, Watermaster initiated a process with the Watermaster Parties and Board to develop the 
2020 Storage Management Plan (2020 SMP) that would update the SMP currently included in the OBMP implementation plan. In that 
effort, Watermaster prepared a white paper that outlined the need and requirements of the 2020 SMP and presented it to the 
Watermaster Parties and other interested stakeholders in June 2019. This work built upon the findings of the 2018 Storage 
Framework Investigation, where Watermaster’s Engineer evaluated the use of storage space in the range of 700,000 acre-feet to 
1,000,000 acre-feet for potential Storage and Recovery programs. Watermaster and its Engineer published a final SMP report on 
December 19, 2019. This report was included in the 2020 OBMP Update Report, which the Watermaster Board adopted in full in 
October 2020. The SMP may be incorporated into the implementation plan for the 2020 OBMP Update.  

Local Storage Limitation Solution. The temporary increase in Safe Storage Capacity to 600,000 acre-feet was set to expire on 
June 30, 2021, after which it would have declined to 500,000 acre-feet absent a new Court-approved storage agreement. At the 
end of Production Year 2020, the total volume of Managed Storage was about 588,000 acre-feet. Anticipating the expiration of the 
temporary increase in Safe Storage, Watermaster Parties recommended expanding environmental documentation and analysis to 
cover the use of Managed Storage above 500,000 acre-feet beyond June 30, 2021. The Parties’ projected behavior and the 
operations of the DYY program were called the Local Storage Limitation Solution (LSLS).  During fiscal year 2020/21, Watermaster’s 
Engineer completed an investigation to assess the potential MPI for the LSLS using the updated groundwater-flow model that was used 
to recalculate the Safe Yield. The conclusions of the investigation were that there would be no unmitigable significant adverse impacts 
attributable to the LSLS. This work supported CEQA documentation to increase the Safe Storage Capacity after June 30, 2021. The 
LSLS allows the Safe Storage Capacity to increase to 700,000 acre-feet through June 30, 2030, and 620,000 acre-feet from July 1, 
2030 through June 30, 2035. The CEQA documentation formed Addendum No. 2 to the OBMP PEIR, which was adopted by the IEUA 
Board on March 17, 2021. The Court granted Watermaster’s motion to implement the LSLS, which became effective on July 1, 2021.  

2020 OBMP Update 

OBMP implementation began in 2000. By 2019, many of the projects and management programs envisioned in the 2000 OBMP have 
been implemented. The understanding of the hydrology and hydrogeology of the Chino Basin has improved since 2000, and new 
water-management issues have been identified that necessitate that the OBMP be adapted to protect the collective interests of the 
Watermaster Parties and their water supply reliability. For these reasons, the Watermaster, with input from the Parties, prepared a 
2020 OBMP Update to set the framework for the next 20 years of basin-management activities. 

During 2019, Watermaster convened a collaborative stakeholder process to prepare the 2020 OBMP Update, similar to that the 
process employed for the development of the 2000 OBMP. The final 2020 OBMP Scoping Report (Scoping Report) was published in 
November 2019 to document the results of the first four Listening Sessions that Watermaster conducted with the stakeholders. The 
Scoping Report summarized (1) the need to update the OBMP, (2) the issues, needs, and wants of the stakeholders, (3) the goals for 
the 2020 OBMP Update, and (4) the recommended scope of work to implement seven stakeholder-defined basin-management 
activities that could be included in the 2020 OBMP Update. 

Through the listening session process, it became apparent that the 2000 OBMP goals remain unchanged, and the nine Program 
Elements (PEs) defined in the 2000 OBMP are still relevant today as the overarching program elements of a basin management 
program. Each of the seven activities in the Scoping Report had objectives and tasks that were directly related to one or more of the 
2000 OBMP PEs. Based on this finding, the nine PEs defined in the 2000 OBMP were retained for the 2020 OBMP Update. Each of 
the seven activities were mapped to one of the existing PEs. 

In January 2020, the Watermaster published the 2020 OBMP Update Report, which described: (1) the 2020 OBMP Update process; 
(2) the OBMP goals and new activities for the 2020 OBMP Update; (3) the status of the OBMP PEs and ongoing activities within them; 
and (4) the recommended 2020 OBMP management plan – inclusive of ongoing and new activities. The management plan will form 
the foundation for the Watermaster Parties to develop a 2020 OBMP Implementation Plan and the agreements necessary to 
implement it. After several workshops and comprehensive review and comments by Watermaster Parties, the final 2020 OBMP 
Update Report was adopted by the Watermaster Board on October 22, 2020. 

Additionally, in January 2020, the Watermaster and IEUA (as the lead agency) began preparing a new subsequent Environmental 
Impact Report (SEIR) to support the OBMP Update.  The updated SEIR will support decision-making, investment, and grant applications 
for ongoing and new management actions under the OBMP. Based on input from the Parties, the certification of the SEIR was 
postponed to a later time. Watermaster and IEUA re-initiated the process to update and certify the SEIR in 2022, hosting three 
workshops to solicit input from the Watermaster Parties on updates to the OBMP Update’s project description and discuss the potential 
updates. During the reporting period, IEUA released the draft SEIR for public review in September 2023. The comment period for the  

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Page 18 

Page 59



Program Element 8: Develop and Implement a Groundwater Storage Management Program; and 
Program Element 9: Develop and Implement a Storage and Recovery Program (Continued) 

draft SEIR extended through November 9, 2023. Watermaster and IEUA began responding to comments during this reporting period, 
and IEUA expects to certify the final SEIR in early 2024. 

An update to the current OBMP Implementation Plan will facilitate the execution of the management actions included in the 2020 
OBMP Update. In March 2020, Watermaster convened a series of “Drafting Sessions” with the Watermaster Parties to develop a 
2020 OBMP Implementation Plan Update and an agreement to implement it. Due to the COVID-19 Pandemic, the Chino Basin Parties 
requested that the Drafting Sessions be put on hold. The Parties decided that the immediate focus for 2020 OBMP implementation 
would be related to storage management and the LSLS (see above). Two new management activities in the 2020 OBMP Update 
began in fiscal year 2023/24: (1) development of a Storage and Recovery Master Plan (SRMP); and (2) preparation of a GQMP. 

During the reporting period, Watermaster and its stakeholders convened the WQC and the SRMP Committee (SRMPC) to develop the 
GQMP and SRMP, respectively. The initial activities of the WQC were to define the objectives and refine the scope of work for the 
GQMP, including providing initial input on the development of a monitoring plan for emerging contaminants (see Groundwater 
Quality Management Program section under PE 6 in this report). The initial activities of the SRMPC were to define the objectives of the 
SRMP and refine the scope of work for its development, including defining desired benefits of Storage and Recovery Programs in the 
Chino Basin. These stakeholder-driven processes are continuing into 2024.  

 

 

Page 19 

Optimum Basin Management Program 

Vineyard at Beech Ave & 15 Fwy 

San Sevaine Basin Cells 1 & 2 

Page 60



Watermaster’s function is to administer and enforce provisions of the Judgment and subsequent orders of the Court, 
and to develop and implement an Optimum Basin Management Program 

EDGAR TELLEZ FOSTER, PhD 
Acting General Manager 

STAFF REPORT 

DATE: March 14, 2024 

TO: AP/ONAP/OAP Committee Members 

SUBJECT: SGMA Reporting for Water Year 2023 (Consent Calendar Item I.D.) 
SUMMARY: 

Issue:  Pursuant to the SGMA, Water Code Section 10720.8(f), the Chino Basin Watermaster is 
required to submit specific data, information, and reports to the Department of Water Resources 
(DWR) by April 1, 2024.  [WM Duties and Powers]. 

Recommendation:  Recommend to the Advisory Committee to recommend to the Watermaster Board 
to approve and direct staff to file the information/reports with the DWR. 

Financial Impact:  None 

Future Consideration 
Appropriative Pool – March 14, 2024:  Advice and assistance. 
Non-Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024:  Advice and assistance. 
Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024:  Advice and assistance. 
Advisory Committee – March 21, 2024:  Advice and assistance. 
Watermaster Board – March 28, 2024:  Approve and direct staff to file the information/reports with the DWR. 
________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 
ACTIONS: 
Appropriative Pool – March 14, 2024:  
Non-Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024:  
Agricultural Pool – March 14, 2024: 
Advisory Committee – March 21, 2024: 
Watermaster Board – March 28, 2024: 

CHINO BASIN WATERMASTER 
9641 San Bernardino Road, Rancho Cucamonga, CA  91730 

Tel:  909.484.3888        www.cbwm.org

Page 61



SGMA Report for WY 2023 March 14, 2024 
Page 2 of 2 

Watermaster’s function is to administer and enforce provisions of the Judgment and subsequent orders of the Court, 
and to develop and implement an Optimum Basin Management Program 

BACKGROUND 

California Water Code Section 10720.8(a) identifies 26 adjudicated areas, including the Chino Basin, which 
are exempt from the requirements of the SGMA except for the reporting requirements listed in Water Code 
Section 10720.8(f). A Watermaster or local agency within an adjudicated area listed under Water Code 
10720.8(a) is required to report the following: 

(1) By April 1, 2016, submit to the department a copy of a governing final judgment, or other judicial
order or decree, and amendments entered before April 1, 2016.

(2) Within 90 days of entry by court, submit to the department a copy of any amendment made and
entered by the court to the governing final judgment or other judicial order or decree on or after
April 1, 2016.

(3) By April 1, 2016, and annually thereafter, submit to the department a report containing the
following information to the extent available for the portion of the basin subject to the
adjudication:

(A) Groundwater elevation data unless otherwise submitted pursuant to Section 10932.
(B) Annual aggregated data identifying groundwater extraction for the preceding water year.
(C) Surface water supply used for or available for use for groundwater recharge or in-lieu use
(D) Total water use
(E) Change in groundwater storage
(F) The annual report submitted to the court.

DISCUSSION 

Pursuant to Water Code 10720.8(f), the Chino Basin Watermaster submitted items (1), (2), and (3) listed 
above by April 1, 2016. Item (3) information was submitted for water years 2015 through 2021. The submittal 
of water year 2023 information by April 1, 2024, is the ninth such submittal by the Chino Basin Watermaster 
to the DWR for Water Code 10720.8(a) item (3).  

The DWR has implemented an online submission system, which is accessible with secure login credentials, 
to facilitate the transmittal of all the required data and reports for adjudicated basins pursuant to the SGMA. 
The online system, called the Adjudicated Basin Annual Reporting System, consists of a specialized 
reporting template to populate all the required information and to upload supporting documents and reports. 
The attached Memorandum, prepared by West Yost, explicitly describes the information and reports that 
will be submitted by the Chino Basin Watermaster to the DWR’s Adjudicated Basin Annual Reporting 
System by April 1, 2024. 

ATTACHMENTS 
1. Memorandum: Chino Basin Watermaster submittal of the water year 2023 reporting requirements

for adjudicated basins pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act

Page 62



23692 Birtcher Drive 

Lake Forest CA 92630 

949.420.3030 phone 

530.756.5991 fax 

westyost.com 

TECHNICAL MEMORANDUM 

DATE: March 7, 2024 Project No.: 941-80-23-07 

SENT VIA: EMAIL 

TO: Chino Basin Watermaster 

FROM: Chino Basin Watermaster Engineer 

SUBJECT: Chino Basin Watermaster submi�al of the water year 2023 repor�ng requirements for 

adjudicated basins pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act  

Pursuant to the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA) requirements for adjudicated basins, 

as described in California Water Code (CWC) Sec�on 10720.8(f), the Chino Basin Watermaster 

(Watermaster) is preparing to submit informa�on pursuant to the annual repor�ng requirements for Chino 

Basin for water year 2023 (October 1, 2022 to September 30, 2023) to the California Department of Water 

Resources (DWR). The SGMA requires that the following six categories of data be submi�ed to the DWR 

by April 1 of each year: (A) groundwater eleva�on data, unless otherwise submi�ed pursuant to Sec�on 

109321; (B) annual aggregated data iden�fying total groundwater extrac�ons for the preceding water year; 

(C) surface water supply used, or available for use, for groundwater recharge or in-lieu use; (D) total water

use; (E) change in groundwater storage; and (F) the Watermaster’s annual report submi�ed to the Court.

The annual repor�ng data are submi�ed to the DWR using its Adjudicated Basins Annual Repor�ng 

System—a password-secured, online submission system accessible at Link. The DWR Adjudicated Basins 

Annual Repor�ng System facilitates the submission of all repor�ng requirements for adjudicated basins 

and consists of a standardized repor�ng template to enter all the required informa�on pursuant to the 

SGMA legisla�on, including the ability to upload suppor�ng documents and reports. The standardized 

repor�ng template includes sec�ons to upload specific required informa�on for repor�ng under the SGMA 

legisla�on, as well as sec�ons for including op�onal informa�on. 

This memorandum describes the informa�on that will be submi�ed to the DWR using the Adjudicated 

Basins Annual Repor�ng System on behalf of the Watermaster to sa�sfy the water year 2023 repor�ng 

requirements for the Chino Basin. If the informa�on and/or reports proposed for submi�al to the DWR 

are not required, it is specified in this memorandum. 

1 CWC Sec�on 10932 requires repor�ng of groundwater levels for the California State Groundwater 

Eleva�on Monitoring (CASGEM) Program.  

Page 63

ATTACHMENT 1



TM – Chino Basin Watermaster 

3/6/2024 

Page 2 

 

 
 TM_CBWM_SGMA_Rpt WY 2023

 

Water Data for Water Year 2023 

The following Chino Basin water year 2023 data and digital documents will be submi�ed. The DWR 

Adjudicated Basins Annual Repor�ng System language is in bold italics and the informa�on for submi�al 

is shown in regular text. All volume data are reported in acre-feet (AF).  

(A) Groundwater eleva�on data unless otherwise submi�ed pursuant to Sec�on 10932. 

Is water level data submi�ed to the CASGEM Program?  Yes  

Does the watermaster collect or receive addi�onal groundwater levels?  Yes  

Does the watermaster measure groundwater levels?  Yes  

(B) Annual aggregated data iden�fying groundwater extrac�on for the preceding water year 

Total Groundwater Extrac�on (AF): 118,905 

Groundwater extrac�on by water use sector (if available):  

The submi�al of this informa�on is op�onal; the following informa�on will be submi�ed: 

Sector Volume (AF) Explana�on 

Urban 105,312 Appropria�ve Pool (Pool 3) 

Agricultural 11,201 Agricultural Pool (Pool 1) 

Other Sector 2,392 Non-Agricultural Pool (Pool 2) 

 

(C) Surface water supply used for or available for use for groundwater recharge or in-lieu use. 

Surface Water Supply (AF): 163,721 

Method used to determine:  

The submi�al of this informa�on on the method is op�onal but recommended by the DWR. The following 

informa�on on the method will be submi�ed with the surface water supply volumes to provide clarity on 

the source and compila�on of these volumes:  

The value reported represents total surface water used for direct consumption and for groundwater 

recharge. Imported water and recycled water deliveries to recharge basins are metered and recorded daily. 

Storm water and urban runoff recharge volumes are measured by stage sensors in the recharge basins. 

Imported water, recycled water, and local surface water amounts used for direct consumption are provided 

by the individual parties in the Chino Basin.  For parties that have service areas not entirely within the Chino 

Basin adjudicated boundary, the proportion of the surface water supply used for consumption inside the 

Chino Basin adjudicated boundary is not quantified.  The portion of the reported volumes that were used for 

recharge, were recharged entirely within the Chino Basin adjudicated boundary. 

Water available for recharge or in-lieu use by source type (if available): 

The submi�al of this informa�on is op�onal; the following informa�on will be submi�ed: 

Page 64



TM – Chino Basin Watermaster 

3/6/2024 

Page 3 

 

 
 TM_CBWM_SGMA_Rpt WY 2023

 

Sector Volume (AF) Explana�on 

Local Surface 

Deliveries 
53,370 

This includes 21,895 AF of storm water and urban runoff for 

groundwater recharge, and 31,475 AF of na�ve surface water for 

direct consump�on. 

State Water Project 

Deliveries 
79,245 

This includes 29,250 AF for groundwater recharge, and 49,995 AF 

for direct consump�on. 

Recycled Water 31,106 
This includes 14,325 AF for groundwater recharge, and 16,781 AF 

for non-potable reuse. 

 

(D) Total Water Use (report water use in the basin as data is available and/or as reported in 

the annual report) 

Total Water Use (AF): 336,978 

Method used to determine:  

The submi�al of this informa�on is op�onal; the following informa�on on the method will be submi�ed 

to provide clarity on the source and compila�on of these total water use volumes:  

Total water use data includes water used for direct consump�on and for groundwater recharge. Data were 

obtained from Watermaster records, and/or collected from the par�es in the Chino Basin. The total water 

use represents the sum of total water use by par�es to the Chino Basin Judgment. Many of the Chino Basin 

appropria�ve pool par�es have service areas that extend outside the Chino Basin adjudicated boundary.  

The propor�on of the total water use for direct consump�on that is used inside the Chino Basin 

adjudicated boundary is not quan�fied by Watermaster.  

Total water use is reported using the pre-defined categories by the DWR under the Water use met by 

source type below, and is appor�oned as follows: Groundwater is groundwater produced from the Chino 

Basin and other basins for direct use; Surface water is imported State Water Project water and na�ve 

surface water used for direct use; Recycled or reused water is recycled water used for direct use; and 

Other is water used for groundwater recharge which includes storm water and urban runoff, imported 

State Water Project water, and recycled water. 

Water Use met by source type: 

The submi�al of this informa�on is op�onal; the following informa�on will be submi�ed: 

 

Type Volume (AF) 

Groundwater 173,256 

Surface water 81,470 

Recycled or reused water 16,782 

Other 65,470 

 

(E) Annual change in groundwater storage  

Change in storage (AF): +57,113  

Page 65



TM – Chino Basin Watermaster 

3/6/2024 

Page 4 

 

 
 TM_CBWM_SGMA_Rpt WY 2023

 

Method used to determine:  

The submi�al of this informa�on is op�onal but recommended by the DWR. The following informa�on 

will be submi�ed:  

The change in storage over the period of October 1, 2022 through September 30, 2023 was es�mated 

using the Chino Basin groundwater model.   

Time period for change: Start date: 10/1/2022   End date: 9/30/2023 

(F) The annual report submi�ed to the court 

Start date: 7/1/2022   End date: 6/30/2023 

Please submit an electronic (PDF preferred) copy of your annual report:  

Watermaster published the Annual Report for fiscal year 2022/2023 since the last SGMA annual repor�ng 

requirements for the Chino Basin were submi�ed on April 1, 2023. The Chino Basin Watermaster 46th 

Annual Report for fiscal year 2022/2023 is submi�ed herein and covers the period of July 2022 through 

June 2023.   

Please submit addi�onal reports or documents: 

The submi�al of this informa�on is op�onal. This memorandum will be submi�ed along with the data and 

informa�on described above.  Addi�onal Chino Basin Watermaster engineering and legal reports are 

available for public download on Watermaster’s website at www.cbwm.org. 

 

Page 66


	20240314 Agenda Appropriative Pool Committee 
	20240314 Agenda Non-Agricultural Pool Committee
	20240314 Agenda Agricultural Pool Committee
	20240208 Draft Minutes Appropriatve Pool Committee Meeting
	20240208 Draft Minutes Non-Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting
	20240208 Draft Minutes Agricultural Pool Committee Meeting 
	Financial Report - January 2024 (Consent Calendar Item I.B.)
	OBMP Semi-Annual Status Report 2023-2 (Consent Calendar Item I.C.)
	SGMA Reporting for Water Year 2023 (Consent Calendar Item I.D.)



